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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRAEE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the Group's consolidated financial
results for the 2016 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group's strategy and
business outlook.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The global environment last year was full of challenges. The market has noted only
slower recovery than many anticipated.

The Group has recorded turnover of HK$6,927.6 million for the 2016 Financial Year,
which shows a slight increase of 0.3% over previous year. With much appreciation of
the teamwork of staff and support from our business partners, the Group's sales volume
decreased slightly by 3.1% at 179.1 million pounds, compared to 184.9 million pounds
of the last financial year. The Group managed to record the net profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to HKS$1,125.5 million (2015: HKS$1,074.8 million).

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK40 cents per share. Together with the
interim dividend of HK40 cents per share declared in November 2015, the total dividend
for the 2016 Financial Year will be HK80 cents per share.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The global economic situations will continue to be full of challenges. Advanced countries
increasingly are acknowledging that a coordinated, albeit differentiated, response will
be required to strengthen the economic development momentum.

Risk management is never out of our primary focus when we consider the policies
for the Group’s sustainable growth. Our Vietnam factory has commenced production
in September 2015. The Group has developed into an enterprise with international
manufacturing layout, and rules compliance becomes increasingly important. During
the year under review, the updated “Terms of Reference” of audit committee has been
accepted by the Board. With the help of our effective risk management and internal
control system, the Group is better equipped to face the challenges during our further
developments.

The advances of productivity driven by innovation and technology are sustainable
developments. We are delighted with the implementation of management solution
system based on SAP HANA® platform during the year, the first successful deployment
in the industry. We will further expand and enhance the application of this important
system within the Group’s manufacturing bases. Furthermore production automation has
been and still be one of the Group’s primary focuses, and we will continue commitment
of resources toward this application in order to make sure the Group is one of leading
players in the industry.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Cont'd)

The Group has a very dedicated management and operational team. The overall
execution capability has been further enhanced during the year. Operational models
have been streamlined through lean manufacturing, and innovative practices have been
developed for the improved efficiency and cost saving. The expansion of the Group
provides good opportunities to all kinds of talents. The Group is confident to win the
competition for talents which is the foundation of our sustainable developments.

The Group's good Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) practices safeguard our
sustainable developments. We are delighted to share more relevant information with
different stakeholders in the section “ESG Report” inside the annual report.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our
customers, business partners, suppliers, stakeholders and bankers for their continuous
support to the Group during the period. | sincerely hope our employees will be able
to grow together with the Group, enjoy their balanced life, and realise their potential
in the Group.

I would also thank our shareholders for their kind support and confidence in the Group
during the past year.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WA

BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERVIEW

During the year under review, the global economic situations were full of challenges as
expected. It has been noted of slower recovery for the markets, especially during the
second half of the year.

The Group's revenue increased by 0.3% to HK$6,927.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: HK$6,906.9 million). The Group's sales volume decreased by 3.1% to 179.1
million pounds for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: 184.9 million pounds) while the
average selling price increased by 3.6% to HK$38.68 (2015: HK$37.35).

During the year under review, the exchange rate of the RMB against the US dollar has
been depreciated. This unexpected depreciation surprised the market, however it is
a favourable factor to the Group in the long run since the Group’s major production
activities are China based. The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
higher than that of previous year mainly because of improved average selling price and
favourable benefits associated with the depreciation of the RMB against the US dollar.
Gross profit improved to HK$1,302.5 million (2015: HKS$1,177.9 million) with gross profit
margin increased from 17.1% a year ago to 18.8%.

During the year under review, mainly due to loss on retirement of fixed assets in the
PRC factory and pre-production expenses incurred in Vietnam factory, general and
administration expenses increased to HK$125.8 million (2015: HK$94.6 million). Finance
income increased to HK$22.5 million (2015: HK$19.5 million) while tax expenses increased
to HKS$172.2 million (2015: HK$ 150 million). With the gain on disposal of certain interest
in an associate of HK$54.9 million and reversal of provision for impairment of interest
in an associate of HK$39.9 million, the Group maintained a net profit margin at 16.2%
slightly higher than that in previous year. Profit for the year increased to HKS$1,122.7
million (2015: HK$1,069.7 million).

With our strong capability in technological and innovative products, the Group
maintained excellent relationship with a large portfolio of renowned international
brands. The top five customers and brand owners accounted for approximately 62.2%
and 74.3%, respectively, of the Group's revenue during the year under review, versus
61.3% and 72% of the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTING AND SOCIAL REPORTING

For the year under review, the Group has continued its operating policies with focus
on sustainable developments. The Group has regarded energy saving and green
manufacturing as important components of its core competitiveness. The results are
noticeable and have been accredited by various governments as well as industrial
associations:

“Fabric Star of China — 2015 Annual User Satisfaction Survey” by Textile Apparel
Weekly;

“Top 10 Enterprises of Energy-Saving and Emission-Reduction”by Guangzhou Energy
Conservation Association;

"Hong Kong Green Organisation” by Environmental Campaign Committee of Hong
Kong;

Clean by Design Environment Improvement Program by Target also honoured the
achievements of the Group with Certificate.

Under the guideline of “Made in China 2025" the Chinese government is very keen
to promote the manufacturing enterprises becoming “big yet strong”. Textile Apparel
Weekly is the best known and most authoritative magazine of the textile industry in
China. To honour the Group's impressive achievements, the Group was selected by Textile
Apparel Weekly as a reported company under its reporting series “The Pillars for a Great
Country” which covers the Group's innovative efforts and achievements in relation to
the green production and energy saving.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT

Different countries have adopted different import and tariff arrangements toward the
products manufactured from different areas. The “Trans-Pacific Strategic Economic
Partnership Agreement” ("TPP") is covering countries with the Group'’s important
customers. During the year under review, some bilateral trade agreements were
also announced such as those between China/Korea and China/Australia, etc. The
international manufacturing layout is the Group's response to the market changes.
During the year under review, the Group's Vietnam factory has commenced production
in September 2015. Different production bases can provide flexibility to the Group in
response to different requirements of our premium customers.

Innovation is one of the core values of the Group and during the year under review,
the Group has implemented a comprehensive business management solution based
on the SAP Business Suite which utilizes the SAP HANA® platform. This successful
implementation is the first end-to-end deployment of SAP Business Suite on HANA in the
textiles industry. As the Group moves towards digitalized manufacturing, this platform
will provide the Group with actionable business insights that help to relentlessly drive
productivity and also lead to other future innovations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENREDN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

INFRASTRUCTURE AND LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT (Cont’d)

In order to improve the environment of the country, the Chinese government has
continued to tighten the requirements for environmental protection. The rules
compliance is critical to the Group’s sustainable developments. During the year under
review, the Group has upgraded its power generation facilities in Panyu factory, and
increased the quality of coal purchased albeit higher procurement price. Furthermore,
the Group has invested resources to improve the water treatment capabilities in Panyu
factory. All these efforts may help the Group to achieve lower emission and keep the
Group’s environmental protection facilities far ahead of the statutory requirements. The
premium customers have chosen to co-operate more with the established factories
like the Group.

Sustainable developments include the improvements driven by technology. During the
year under review, the Group has continued its deployment of production automation
with the aim to strengthen efficiency and improve cost efficiency. The Group has
confidence that intelligent manufacturing is one of strategic developing directions for
the industry. With the help of strong capability of innovation, the Group will become
one of the leading players in the industry exploring automatic production.

The Group has a very outstanding management and operational team with all kinds
of talents. During the year under review, the Group has further streamlined the
production processing through lean manufacturing projects. The continued fine-tuning
of operational models has gradually improved the efficiency and reduced costs. The
increasing productivity in turn helped the Group's sustainable developments.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HK$1,452.5 million
(2015: HK$2,025.4 million), including HK$463.5 million, the equivalent of HK$553.8
million in USS, the equivalent of HK$403.2 million in Renminbi, the equivalent of HK$31.4
million in VND and the equivalent of HK$0.6 million in other currencies. The cash and
bank balances and time deposits are to finance the Group’s working capital and capital
expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HK$686.5 million (2015: HK$987.9 million), and a
shareholder’s loan of HK$144.4 million (2015: HK$144.4 million) contributed by our joint
venture partners to our Vietnam subsidiary. The shareholder’s loan is of equity nature
and is unlikely to be repaid within one year.

For the 2016 Financial Year, the Group’s total assets amounted to HK$5,431.4 million
(2015: HKS5,727.2 million), representing a decrease of 5.2%. Non-current assets and
current assets were HK$1,886.6 million and HK$3,544.8 million, respectively. The above
assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$1,906.1 million, non-current liabilities of
HKS$173.4 million, and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$3,360.1 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2016, the current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current assets
over current liabilities) was 1.9 (2015: 1.9). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total
interest bearing debt to total equity, was 21.2% (2015: 29.6%). As at 31 March 2016, the
Group was in a net cash position of HK$621.6 million (2015: HK$893.1 million).

The Group adopted cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital expenditure in response
to the market demand. During the year under review, total capital expenditure decreased
11.9% to HK$337 million (2015: HK$382.6 million), which was mainly used to purchase
plant and machinery, construction projects of Panyu plant and Vietnam Plant.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange
exposure. The Group hedges against the exposure and reduce the risk involved as
appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have assets pledged for the bank loans (2015:
Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 5,945 full-time employees (2015: 5,084). There is
no significant change in the Group’s remuneration policy. The Group's remuneration
package for its employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits,
based on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to
provide regular training and competitive remuneration packages to its staff. The Group
also provides additional benefits to its employees, such as subsidized accommodation
and meals for workers at the production facilities, and accident and medical insurance.

The Group has adopted a Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the scheme, the Company
has granted options to eligible employees.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK40 cents (2015: HK40 cents) per
share for the 2016 Financial Year, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. Together with an interim dividend of HK40 cents (2015: HK40 cents)
per share, the total dividend for the 2016 Financial Year amounted to HK80 cents (2015:
HK80 cents) per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENREDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

We shall face a challenging and uncertain year ahead. The current macro economic
situation is volatile. The unstable political situation in Europe and USA, the strong yen,
and the weakness in Chinese economy will have impact on our business.

The Group's Vietnam factory has commenced its production in September 2015. The
Group will continue the establishment of local management and operational team.
Customized management and operational models will be developed and adopted to
our Vietnam factory’s own situation. Furthermore, the Group will improve the integration
of different manufacturing bases. Integrated and co-ordinated manufacturing bases
will ultimately maximise the benefit of international production layout to the Group
as a whole.

The Group will keep improving the business solution system based on SAP HANA®
platform. This will help the Group to adopt best practices globally proven in the area of
resource planning, and create innovative practices in the industry of textile.

Intelligent manufacturing, driven by technology, will lead to productivity advancement.
Production automation is the focus of sustainable development for the Group, and it will
help the Group to stay competitive under the unfavourable factor of continued increase
of labour cost. The Group will continue the deployment and make sure itself one of the
leading players in the industry applying automatic production.

Benefited by the advanced management information system and international
manufacturing layout, the Group is better positioned to reinforce its cooperation with
our premium customers. The value added services by the Group will be able to meet the
dynamic demands from premium customers, in return the Group's business will grow
together with the customers'

The Group will continue its investments into the advancement of production facilities
in the Panyu factory, i.e. the new water treatment plant, etc. Improved production
equipments may keep the Group to strengthen its productivity and efficiency.
Furthermore, the rules compliance with statutory requirements safeguards the Group's
sustainable developments.

The Group never underestimates the importance of rules compliance and risk
management. The Group will continue enhancing its risk management and internal
control system, with the help of professionals internally as well as externally. Effective
risk management and internal control system is critical to the Group's sustainable
developments.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 66, is an executive Director and Chairman and a founder of the
Group. Mr. Wan was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 July
2015. Mr. Wan is responsible for production of the products and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies of the Group. Mr. Wan has over 43
years of experience in the textile industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Chemical Engineering from Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the
Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 65, is an executive Director and the Vice Chairman and
a founder of the Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales and marketing and the
formulation of the overall corporate direction and business strategies for the Group.
Mr. Tsang has over 37 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Tsang obtained
a MBA degree from The Open University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in
Business Economics from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang joined the
Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 80, is a non-executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Choi co-founded our Group in 1997 and has been the chairman of the Group since
its inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus chairman of the Company and is a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group. He has approximately 48 years of experience
in the textile industry. Mr. Choi was educated in ZEIETARE + FEEZ (School of
Architecture, South China University of Technology) and is a Honorary Professor of
the University. He is also a Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City and Jiangmen City. Mr.
Choi has been awarded I BI#H 4577542 & 188 (China Knitting Industry Lifetime
Achievement Award) by B T @ EMUEEEE (4th Council of the China
Knitting Industry Association) in 2010. Mr. Choi was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 79, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and senior
partner of our Group. Mr. Ip has over 39 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Ip was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of
the Group.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRAREEASEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 68, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over 39 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology
from the Hong Kong Technical College. He is the Vice Chairman of Group 3 (Dyeing and
Finishing) of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He ceased to be the member of the
General Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau was appointed as a
non-executive Director in 2007. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 65, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lam was responsible for
sales and marketing and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over 41 years of experience in the textile industry.
Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from The University of Macau and a Bachelor of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is a Vice Chairman of
Board of Trustee of New Asia College and Honorary Fellow of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004.
Mr. Lam has resigned as Chief Executive Officer, and re-designated as non-executive
director effective from 1 July 2015. He remains as the chairman of our associated
company “Textured Jersey Lanka PLC" which is listed on Colombo Stock Exchange, and
a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director.
He was the former chairman and is currently the non-executive director of Café de
Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company which he joined in 1984, and has
considerable experience in planning and management. Dr. Chan is also an independent
non-executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited since 2010, Modern Dental Group Limited in 2015 and Human
Health Holdings Limited in 2016, and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited since 2007, all five companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan ceased to be the independent non-executive director of
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since August, 2015. Dr. Chan holds a Bachelor
of Arts, a Master degree in City Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an
Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary
Fellow from Lingnan University. He is also a member of the Political Consultative
Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen in the People’s Republic of China. He served
on the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, and is currently the Adviser of the Quality
Tourism Services Association, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing and the chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong
Kong Management Association. He is also being appointed by the HKSAR Government as
a member of the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee and ceased to be the member
of the Task Force on promotion of Vocational Education. Dr. Chan was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 2007.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Ng has over
29 years of senior management experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng
was a director and a member of the executive committee for Advanced Info Service
Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company. He was an independent director
of China Digital TV Holding Co. Ltd., a New York Stock Exchange listed company and
a non-executive director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company. He was the chief executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief
executive officer of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng is the Honorary
Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong and is the appointed member
of Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established under the
Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng was a member of the
Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and Administration. Mr.
Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Sze
has senior management experience in the private and investment banking industry
serving high net worth clients and institutions. He ceased to be the managing director,
head of China and Hong Kong of Julius Baer Bank. He was the chief executive officer
of EFG Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing
director, head of investment of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief
executive officer of Asia-Pacific for International Private Bank, Barclays Wealth and an
executive director in the private clients division at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong
Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He
is a Fellow of CPA Australia. Mr. Sze was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in 2007.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. TOU Kit Vai, aged 53, joined the Group in 2013 and appointed as CFO on Tst
April 2014. Mr. Tou is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, he was an
executive director of a HK listed company during 2007-2012 and he has extensive
experiences in factory operations, financial management, project management and
ERP System.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHOU Yung, aged 46, joined the Group in October 2014 as Company Secretary. Mr.
Chou is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, he was
a company secretary of a HK listed company during 2007-2011 and he has extensive
experiences in financial management, corporate governance and administration.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 HEURERRE

This is the sustainability report, which outlines our major members' approaches,
commitment and strategies in four aspects of sustainability — workplace quality,
environmental protection, operating practices and community involvement. The
reporting period of this report is from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016. The data disclosed
in this report are prepared and provided by the respective administration departments
of Panyu plant and Vietnam plant of the Group.

VISION

“To make the world a more comfortable and better place through our products” - Pacific
Textiles is a creative and sizeable knitted fabric manufacturer and marketer whose
business scope covers integrated services of knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing.

MISSION

“In global textile community, we strive for:

- Quality products and services;

- Equitable opportunities and respect;
- High returns to the investors;

- Excellent environmental protection;

through the faith of social responsibilities and innovation.” - Pacific Textiles considers
green manufacturing and environment protection not only as the responsibility of
a responsible enterprise citizen, but also as the basis of long-term viability for any
enterprises. Pacific Textiles has been actively taking steps to ensure that by-products
from its manufacturing facilities are disposed of with minimal effects to the environment
and trying its best to achieve a harmonious development of the enterprise, natural
environment and all stakeholders.

WORKING ENVIRONMENT

Each employee is required to sign an employment contract and receipt of hazardous
notice of occupational health to job holder as referred to the local government
requirements and it mainly covers the job title and duties; work hours; rest period;
statutory benefits and preventive measures for occupational hazards etc. We conduct
assessment on labor working environment to ensure good and safe working conditions
for our employees in terms of light, noise, air, dust, wind, gas, etc. All related factors meet
the standard of local government. We also provide our employee proper PPE to prevent
potential labor accident and minimize the influence on employee’s health: ear plug,
goggles, dust respirator, mask, rubber gloves/boots, insulated shoes, apron, hair net,
safety belt, etc. Annual health check is conducted for all employees to help employees
and the company knows their health status and has proper arrangement of work as well
as medical treatment, if necessary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYEES’ BASIC INFORMATION

As of March 2016, 5,000 employees were under full-time employment in Panyu plant;
age range from 18-60 and come from various provinces of Mainland China. About 5%
for age group from 18-30 and come from various provinces of Mainland China.

As of March 2016, total 729 employees are hired for full employment in Vietnam
plant. Youngest employee in our Company is 18 years old, employees under 38 years
old accounting for 97% of total employees. Vietham plant’'s employees come from
different provinces nationwide, but majority is local resident accounting for 88% of
total employees. Vietnam plant implements hiring health checking for new employees
to ensure a healthy labor force for effective and efficient production.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Panyu plant attaches great importance to production safety management and
occupational health management. It spared no effort to consistently implement the
occupational health and safety policy of “Compliance, care, safety, health, inspection
of hidden dangers, risk control, safety guarantee, full participation, aggressiveness,
promotion of harmonious development’, firmly enforced a policy of “Observing laws
and regulations, dedicating to control and minimize safety risks and adhering to the
principle of people-oriented so as to provide a safety and healthy working environment
and living environment for employees’, proactively carried out works in terms of safety
production standardization, established a management system of safety production
standardization and also obtained certification of OHSAS18001 Occupational Health
and Safety management system.

In Vietnam plant, labor health and safety is in a prior consideration for mill setting in
Vietnam and several measures and procedures were set to guarantee the safe and
healthy working circumstance all throughout period of working participation in the
factory. Health check service is provided in Vietnam plant to all employees when new
recruited or annually for enrolled colleagues. Meanwhile, an internal clinic was set in 24
hours service for any emergency aid just in case. Working environment in Vietnam plant
is regularly sampled and checked by third parties every three months for noise level,
particle level and other parameters that may affect work health. Besides health check
and working environment inspection, the Vietnam plant also found a team for internal
safety controlling on fire-fighting safety and work safety. Fire-fighting devices, PPEs for
works that involve patent dangers or injury were well equipped and managed by the
team and under periodical review and reporting.

FATALITY NUMBER AND RATE

There is not observed any mortality related to working in Panyu plant.

There is not observed any mortality related to working in Vietnam plant.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R5 HEUARERRE

LOST DAYS DUE TO WORK INJURY

In 2015, the lost working days due to work injury of Panyu plant was 2,164 man-days,
accounting for 0.013% of the total man-days in fully-manned circumstance.

Vietnam plant has established arrangement of compensating working hours due
to injury during work hour: if any employee had labor accident, company will pay
compensation working hour for employee by payment for total working hours that they
must leave working for health treatment.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES

In terms of safety production management, Panyu plant conducted thorough hazards
identification and risk assessment annually and established risk control measures
and necessary emergency practice for important hazards. Safety executives from all
departments who have participated in pre-job professional trainings and have passed
tests and obtained qualifications manage and control the significant sources of hazards
and comprehensively control the potential safety hazards, so as to minimize work safety
incidents. In terms of occupational health management, Panyu plant invited Guangdong
Prevention and Treatment Center for Occupational Diseases to assess the occupational
hazards for all job posts of the Company. According to the assessment result, Pacific
Textiles carries out protection from occupational hazards for relative job posts and
occupational health protection for employees and conducts occupational health checks
annually, so as to guarantee employees’ physical health. In 2015, Panyu plant conducted
occupational health checks for all employees, achieving coverage of 100%.

Vietnam plant adopts Occupational Health and Safety Measures and related execution
and observation procedures:

Check health periodically to find out occupation disease;
Supply personal protective equipment for employee;
Periodically testing and maintaining the machinery, equipment, workshops;

Occupation health & safety committee will patrol periodically to find out unusual
problem that related with working safety;

Organization safety training for employee periodically as local government
requirement (External training);

Establish Fire-fighting plan and organization practice every year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We formulate yearly training plan for different levels of employees in Panyu plant.
Some are regular programs, while others are subject to job and operational needs and
requirements such as effective use of MS Office, sport course, yoga course for all levels,
health & safety for fundamental level, managing young generation (80s & 90s) effectively
for middle level team leaders etc. In 2015, while it came to over 90% of middle and
fundamental employees joining various kinds of training programs in relation to their
job and operational needs including new employees induction course, health & safety,
language course, technical skills and statutory post license renewal etc. As a whole, it
was about 1.96 monthly training hours per employee in Panyu plant.

Vietnam plant provides orientation training: all newly hired employees are required
to join the orientation training covering internal regulations on compensations and
benefits, labor discipline, health and safety, firefighting, job and operational needs.
Vietnam plant also provides annual training and irregular training:

Annual training will be provided in terms of internal regulations and health and
safety for all employees, fire-fighting;

The company arranges periodical training for different groups of employees in
referred to local regulations including safety operation training for forklift driver,
waste management in-charge, boiler operator, chemical management in-charge,
first aider, etc.

Irregular training courses is conducted based on actual request of each department
to improve working capability of employees such as elementary occupational
certificate for boiler operators, forklift driver, crane operator.

LABOR STANDARDS

As required by the company employment policy and our foreign customers, no child
and forced labor will be permitted for employment in Panyu plant.

As internal policy, no child labor is hired under any circumstance in Vietnam plant. Hiring
in-charge staff is trained to perform interview techniques to ensure hired employees
in compliance with the company standards. Also, no forced labor is allowed in the
Vietnam plant. All employees work here in voluntary willing basis. Vietnam plant sets up
procedure to receive employee’s feedback on all issues including child labor and forced
labor. If any case of non-compliance is reported, an investigation will be carried out to
settle the case and prevent the repetition.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R5 HEUARERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Panyu plant’s policies in respect of energy management are: proactively utilizing
advanced energy-saving technologies, striving to research and develop low-consumption
processes, constantly improving energy utilization efficiency and promoting energy
consumption level towards international-advanced level. Panyu plant proactively
utilized advanced energy-saving technologies, undertook several industrial and national
demonstration projects, worked hard on the research and development of energy-saving
processes and technologies, and achieved good energy-saving efficiency.

The aggregate energy consumption of Panyu plant for 2015 was standard coal of
180,300 tons, and the energy consumption per unit of product decreased by 6.1%
as compared with 2014. The Company achieved an energy saving and consumption
reduction of standard coal of 13,000 tons during the year. The water consumption per
unit of product decreased by 2.2%, resulting in a reduction in water consumption of
20,000 tons for the year.

In 2015, Panyu plant was recognized as “Pilot Enterprises for Ecological Design of Industrial
Production (the first batch)” by Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, honored
as "Hong Kong Green Organization” by the Environmental Campaign Committee of
Hong Kong, and selected as “Top 10 Energy-Saving and Emission-Reduction Enterprises
of Guangzhou" by Guangzhou Energy Conservation Association, and was granted with
the "NRDC Best Innovative Energy-Saving Technology Implementation Award” and the
“NRDC Best Energy and Water Saving Efficiency Award” by Natural Resources Defense
Council (NRDC) headquartered in US.A. and the World Bank’s International Finance
Corporation (IFC), respectively.

Panyu plant adopted a transfer processing system with regard to treatment of hazardous
wastes in compliance with the relevant policy requirements, under which entities
obtaining necessary qualifications are entrusted to conduct unified treatment. A
qualified treatment rate of 100% was achieved in respect of hazardous wastes. The
Company entrusted relevant entities to recycle, reuse and comprehensively treat the
non-hazardous wastes, and achieved a comprehensive treatment rate of 100%.

Panyu plant promoted the utilization of clean energy and the optimization of resource
utilization structure in an active manner. In particular, in 2014, it carried out the 402KW
solar photovoltaic power generating project and the solar heating steam project, to be
the pioneer among the industry in using solar clean energy to replace partially fossil
energy like coal, aiming at reducing energy consumption and minimize emission of
exhaust gas pollutants and COx.

Principal measures adopted by Panyu plant in mitigating emissions of exhaust gases
from boiler stations of thermal power plants include:

Newly installing the inside-boiler calcium injection desulfuration device, enhancing
raw coal sourcing criteria and purchasing coal with lower sulfur and ash;

Carrying out modification works in order to enhance the criteria for emissions from
boiler station.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Contd)

Panyu plant has achieved:

Improvement in exhaust gas emission criterion from S02<200mg/m? to SO2<50mg/
m3;

Reduction in annual SO: emission of 180.2 tons.
Principal measures adopted by Panyu plant in mitigating wastewater emissions include:

Newly equipped with magnetic levitation blowers in biochemical treatment section,
to save energy by approximately 20% and improve water quality of the discharge
water;

Construction of new wastewater treatment plants, to further improve water quality
of the discharge water and increase reuse of wastewater.

Panyu plant has achieved: improvement in executive standards for the maximum
wastewater discharging concentration (direct discharging) of newly established
enterprises set out in Form 2 of the Discharge Standards of Water Pollutants for Dyeing
and Finishing of Textile Industry (GB4287-2012).

Principal measures adopted by Panyu plant in mitigating greenhouse gas emissions
include: carrying out energy-saving technology modification works in order to reduce
the Company’s consumption of coal and purchased electricity.

Panyu plant has achieved: reduction in greenhouse gas emission of 23,524 tons.

Vietnam plant conducts quarterly assessment and analysis on environment covering
waste water and air emission from boiler to ensure Company’s operation does not have
negative impact to surrounding environment and in compliance with local government
standards. All kinds of waste including living waste, industrial waste, especially hazardous
waste are classified and treated properly by permitted contractors. Some kinds of wastes
like nylon, scrap fabric can be recycled for cleaning purpose. Energy saving practice is
concerned from small action to turn off unnecessary and un-used electrical equipment.
Vietnam plant also reserves certain percentage of land within company premise for
planting trees, grass that helps to improve the air quality and landscape as well.

Vietnam plant takes very serious of reduce, recycle and reuse of pollutants:

Reuse sludge generated from water and wastewater treatment plant as Bio-fuel;

Reduce gaseous pollutant discharging from origin by strictly control on coal quality
procured. i.e. low sulfur and dust content;

Recycle debris generated from boiler as raw material for other industry.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R5 HEUARERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Cont'd)

Vietnam plant has achieved:
Zero sludge disposal;
Gaseous pollutant discharging level is far below local standards;

Debris generated from boiler is fully reused by third party contractor.

In Vietnam plant, all hazardous waste is registered with local authorities. All storage
and transfer is done according to local regulations with transferring records sent by
authorized contractor. Hazardous waste is legally disposed of in compliance with local
laws. Normal waste is recycled, reused or disposed of by third parties.

Pollutant discharged from Vietnam plant during daily operation mainly includes emission
from boiler station and treated effluent after wastewater treatment system. Though
there's not yet official regulation on installation of on-line monitoring system in Vietnam,
in a concern of real time monitoring and fast reacting to environmental safety issues,
Vietnam plant had equipped both treatment systems, either boiler or wastewater
treatment plant, with on-line monitoring system for daily observation and reporting.

Natural resources that Vietnam plant utilized are river water and coal. River water is
deriving from surface water nearby, specified as Rang River in Hai Duong, Vietnam. Daily
intake raw water, due to low production capacity in 2015, is around 2,500 cubic meters.
Coal procured in local Vietnam is restricted to low sulfur and dust content, i.e. hard coal.
Daily consumption of coal in 2015 is 30 tons coal equivalent (7,000 Kcal).

City Power is a main source of energy consumption in Vietnam plant. City power
consumption in 2015 is 31,767 KWH daily.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Yarn suppliers of Pacific Textiles mainly come from Asia, covering various countries and
regions including Mainland China (with approximately 20 yarn suppliers)/India (with
approximately 10 yarn suppliers)/South Korea (with approximately 6 yarn suppliers)/
Taiwan (with approximately 6 yarn suppliers)/Indonesia (with approximately 4 yarn
suppliers)/Thailand (with approximately 3 yarn suppliers)/Pakistan (with approximately 2
yarn suppliers)/Japan (with approximately 1 yarn supplier), which minimize geopolitical
risks.

Pacific Textiles pays great attention to product quality. To become a recognized yarn
supplier of Pacific Textiles, each yarn supplier has to have its yarn quality to meet the
quality standards as required by our factories. Practices are as follows:

1) FOR NEW SUPPLIERS
At first, new suppliers are required to provide sample yarn for Pacific Textiles to
conduct quality testing;

If the sample yarn passed the quality testing and the yarn price and delivery
time satisfy relevant requirements, the material department would procure a
small amount of yarn for further quality assessment;

There is a half-year assessment period for each new supplier. If the relevant
supplier delivers a stable performance in all aspects including product quality
during such period, we would promote it to be a qualified supplier.

2) FOR EXISTING SUPPLIERS
At first, existing suppliers are required to provide shipment sample in batches
for quality testing by factories of Pacific Textiles;

If the shipment sample passed the quality testing, the relevant supplier may
ship such batch of bulk yarn;

Meanwhile, quality control staff of Pacific Textiles will continue to monitor the
consistency between quality performance of shipment sample and bulk yarn
of such supplier.

Secondly, quality control staff of Pacific Textiles will update the quality conditions of each
kind of yarns (including any findings identified during the process of trial production
and bulk production) at the raw material meetings held every Tuesday.

Thirdly, every month, quality control staff of Pacific Textiles will provide comprehensive
quality assessment results of major yarns supplied for material department’s reference
in making future procurement.

Should any supplier suffer a decline in yarn quality and not be able to convince us that its
yarns will meet the quality requirements of factories of Pacific Textiles within a specified
three-month period, the material department would cease to procure from such supplier.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R5 HEUARERRE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The products of Pacific Textiles are manufactured in strict compliance with the relevant
international standards. No products of Pacific Textiles were subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

Upon receiving a customer's complaint on product quality, Pacific Textiles will deliver
the relevant information (office of complaint and the content of complaint) to its
quality control department to conduct investigation and analysis on the reasons and
determine the responsibilities which are divided as follows based on the sources of
defective products:

If the quality issue occurs due to materials, the material department will inform
the relevant supplier to investigate and verify and the supplier shall bear the
responsibility if it is true.

If the quality issue occurs due to manufacturing errors or process issues, the quality
control department will inform the relevant factory headquarters to investigate and
verify and the relevant factory headquarters shall bear the responsibility if it is true.

If the quality issue occurs due to improper loading and unloading during
transportation and other reasons, the carrier shall bear the responsibility.

The products of Pacific Textiles will be verified in accordance with the verification
standards as agreed with the relevant customers. Pacific Textiles has established specific
arrangements in relation to recall procedures. Upon receiving a customer’s complaint
on the quality of its products, the quality control department or the person in charge
from the relevant responsible factory headquarters will confirm recalling (as defective
products or for repairs). Then the sales personnel will inform the transportation
department to arrange for collecting the fabrics from the customer and returning the
fabrics to the relevant factory. If the products are considered to be defective, then they
will be warehoused upon confirmation by competent personnel (factory in-charged or
above). If the products need to be repaired, then they will be repaired by the relevant
factory headquarters, and won't be delivered to the relevant customer until passing
inspection.

MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS,
CONSUMER DATA PROTECTION AND PRIVACY POLICIES

Pacific Textiles respects and protects its customers’intellectual property rights, privacy
and other trade secrets. After receiving customers’ designs, Pacific Textiles will take
measures to ensure the safety of their intellectual property rights, privacy and other
trade secrets and prevent the unauthorized disclosure of such secrets.

For some products involving to intellectual property rights, Pacific Textiles will enter into

confidentiality agreements with the relevant suppliers and customers in relation to the
intellectual property rights and trade secrets.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We formulate anti-corruption policy, rules and regulations for our employees, contractors
and suppliers as well in both Panyu plant and Vietnam plant. Any contravention to the
policy, rules and regulations are identified with solid evidence, the contravened parties
of or for services will be terminated immediately.

Relevant working policy, rules, regulations and procedures will be reviewed from time to
time for avoiding repeated cases. We also set up a compliant mechanism for reporting
corrupted behavior if any.

Detailed anti-corruption procedures are well informed to all of employees, contractors
and suppliers through internal notice and business letter respectively in both Panyu plant
and Vietnam plant. The procedures cover various channels for reporting the corrupted
behavior including email, phone, letter, letter box or in person etc.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Panyu plant formulates necessary plan for making contribution to local people
depending on the actual needs and company resources. Panyu plant makes contribution
to school transportation and old age people as well as participating and sponsoring
community sport and arts activities. Panyu plant provides monetary contribution to
students'transportation fee and season’s money to 60 years old or above senior people.
Panyu plant also hired 72 handicapped people for employments so as to give indirect
assistance to their living.

The motto of Vietnam plant is to do business in respect of balancing company benefits
and employee’s benefits and in responsible manner to local community where the
company is located in. Vietnam plant will base on actual needs and internal resource in
each period to contribute for local resident as well as community in aspect of charitable
activities for impoverished and disable persons, local festival event or environmental
protection activities. Vietnam plant supported an amount of 61,000,000VND (equivalent
to HK$21,351, with exchange rate as at 31 March 2016: 1USS = 22,285VND) to local
government in occasion of tree planting festival, while it donated 1,000,000VYND
(equivalent to HK$350, with exchange rate as at 31 March 2016) for local pagoda festival.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESREE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the 2016 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of textile products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year by geographical
location of business operation is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the Group's
future developments is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, business and prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The following are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in
addition to those outlined below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The current macro economical situation is volatile. The unstable political situation in
Europe and USA, the strong yen, and the weakness in Chinese economy will have impact
on the Group's business.

Strategic Direction Risk

The success of future business depends on achieving our strategic objectives, including
through acquisitions, joint ventures, dispositions and restructurings. The Group faces risk
in its application of its assets and capital towards suitable investments and seizure of
business and investment opportunities when such opportunities arise.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may
disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in
reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable
laws and regulations.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 53 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK 40 cents (2015: HK40 cents) per share was paid on 11 January
2016 to shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK40 cents (2015: HK40 cents) per share. Subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK40 cents will be paid on 30 August 2016
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
15 August 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 1 August 2016 to
4 August 2016 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29 July 2016.

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 10 August 2016 to
15 August 2016 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 August 2016.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESRAS

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2016
Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the 2016 Financial Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,385 million (2015: HK$2,301 million), comprising the share premium,
share-based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company.

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following
the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
2016 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$39,000 (2015: HK$84,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of approximately HK$337 million (2015: HK$383 million) was incurred during
the 2016 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2016 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2015:Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company'’s shares during the 2016 Financial Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2016 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 62.2% of the Group's total sales and sales to the Group's largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 40.3%. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 55.7% of the Group's total purchases and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
41%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had
any interests in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 138 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the 2016 Financial Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung

Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Mr. LAM Wing Tak

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Tsang Kang Po, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael will
retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of two years. Each service agreement will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving to the other party at least six months' prior notice
in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had been
appointed for an initial term of two years with effect from 1 May 2007. The term of the
appointment has been extended thereafter.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the 2016 Financial Year is set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2016 Financial Year or
at any time during the 2016 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which causes
or may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the shareholders
of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2016 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES
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Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

BERITROBE RERMEE
Approximate
Corporate percentage
Interests of issued
Personal Family (interests of share capital
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and of the
(beneficial (interests  corporation) similar Company
Name of Directors/ owner) of spouse) EERE R interests Total RAAF]
Chief Executives PN £ FEER  (RHERES fBrER Interests BRTRAZ
BEE THER®SE BEREEA) (GEzEzR) BRIER) Bl s fEEEEE BB
Ip Ping Im - 2,000,000 403,394,000 - 405,394,000 28.03%
Bk (Note 1)
(FH7E)
Lam Wing Tak 14,566,000 1,087,000 - 100,000,000 115,653,000 8.00%
RER{E (Note 2)
(BF5E2)
Lau Yiu Tong 52,501,000 - - - 52,501,000 3.63%
k]
Tsang Kang Po 1,988,000 2,501,000 100,000,000 - 104,489,000 7.22%
B (Note 3)
(FH3E3)
Wan Wai Loi 15,497,000 1,030,000 11,304,000 - 27,831,000 1.92%
FEK (Note 4)
(FH7E4)
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. These Shares are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose issued share capital is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im.

2. These Shares are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises Limited, whose issued share
capital is wholly-owned by BLWT Company Limited. The issued share capital of BLWT
Company Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of
the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the
founder of the family trust.

3. These Shares are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital
is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

4. These Shares are directly held by Hollywood Pacific Limited, whose issued share capital
is 100% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company, had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

At no time during the 2016 Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

Name of shareholders

BREES B

Chiu Bo Lan

Hollywood Pacific Limited

Lam Wai Yee
MWEE

Far East Asia Limited

Wong Bik Ha

= I\E
HER

BLWT Company Limited
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Ry sERR iy B ETAR

BB TR
Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest
BERITROBE RERMEE
Approximate
Corporate percentage
Interests of issued
Personal Family (interests of share capital
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and of the
(beneficial (interests  corporation) similar Company
owner) of spouse) EERE R interests Total RAAF]
PN £ FEER  (RHEREG Bk Interests BRTRAZ
(BEZ#EAAN) (REzER) BERzZER) BilEEs B BB
1,030,000 26,801,000 - 27,831,000 1.92%
(Note 1 & 2)
(Mf5E1F02)
11,304,000 - - - 11,304,000 0.78%
(Note 2)
(PR EE2)
2,000,000 403,394,000 - - 405,394,000 28.03%
(Note 3)
(PH3E3)
403,394,000 - - - 403,394,000 27.89%
(Note 4)
(Hf714)
1,087,000 14,566,000 - 100,000,000 115,653,000 8.00%
(Note 5) (Note 6)
(B 5ES) (Bf5E6)
- - - 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.91%
(Note 6)
(F5E6)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND T ERFRREMATRRONEERS 2
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

o

(&)

B3 zirr (&)

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

BFERITROBME RERMESE
Approximate
Corporate percentage
Interests of issued
Personal Family (interests of share capital
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and of the
(beneficial (interests  corporation) similar Company
owner) of spouse) EERE R interests Total RAAF]
Name of shareholders PN £ FEER  (RHEREG Bk Interests BEITRAZ
RE®ER B EREEA) (BEzER) BRIER) B fEEEE BB
Fifth Element Enterprises Limited - - - 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.91%
(Note 6)
(Ff5t6)
HSBC International Trustee Limited - - - 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.91%
(Note 6)
(M3E6)
Wong Mei Ling 2,501,000 1,988,000 100,000,000 - 104,489,000 7.22%
EHEW (Note 7) (Note 8)
(Ht5E7) (F7E8)
Top Strong Holdings Limited 100,000,000 - - - 100,000,000 6.91%
(Note 8)
(Hf7r8)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, a Director.

2. Hollywood Pacific Limited is 100% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

3. Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

4. Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

5. Ms. Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director.
6. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by BLWT Company Limited. BLWT
Company Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of

the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the
founder of the family trust.

7. Ms.Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

8. Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by Ms.
Wong Mei Ling, the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ANY OTHER MEMBER
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Approximate
percentage
Nature of of issued
Name of members Name of Number of issued shares share capital
of the Group substantial shareholders Notes interest BT REBITRE
AEERE QT EHE TERRER M EanE RGEE ZBABE DL
PT Sri Lanka Brandix Lanka Limited 1 Beneficial owner 223,466,079 32.11%
PTHTER EnEAA
PCGT Limited Crystal Peak International Limited 2 &3 Beneficial owner 975,000 25.00%
HIEBRBR A 283 EmEBEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ANY OTHER MEMBER

IN THE GROUP (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. PT SriLanka is owned as to 28.15% by Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and 32.11% by Brandix Lanka Limited.

2. PCGT Limited is owned as to 75% by Pacific GT Limited and 25% by Crystal Peak
International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crystal International Limited.

3. Pacific GT Limited is owned as to 95% by Product Champion Limited, a wholly- owned
subsidiary of the Company, and 2.5% by GSI Trading Hong Kong Limited and 2.5% by
Toray Industries (H.K.) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2016, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the Company passed on 27
April 2007, the Company adopted the Share Option scheme subject to the terms and
conditions therein. Refer to an announcement of 11 October 2013 for grant of 10,000,000
share options of the Company (the “2nd Grant”) and the previous grant of 22,820,000 on
18 July 2007 (the “1st Grant”), the options shall expire on 10 October 2023 and 17 July
2017 respectively. The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates of the 1st Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share
respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person’, namely an employee,
director or non-executive director (including INED) of any Member of the Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company, subsidiaries
or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated companies of
the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the Share Option
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

3. Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”), representing
143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date
of grant of the option.

. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a) General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the Listing
Date.

6. Exercise price and payment on grant

(a) Exercise price
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder which
shall not be less than the higher of:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

6. Exercise price and payment on grant (Cont’d)

(a) Exercise price (Contd)

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

(b) Payment on grant

Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option

granted to them.

7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at midnight on the day

immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date.

B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2016, all options under the 1st Grant were fully exercised, options
under the 2nd Grant to subscribe for an aggregate of 9,900,000 Shares granted to
eligible full-time employees on 11 October 2013 pursuant to the terms of the Share

Option Scheme remained outstanding, details of which were as follows:

Date of Grant
BB

Grantee

ARA

18/07/2007 (15t Grant) (E—REF L)
11/10/2013 (2nd Grant) (E = RE )

Eligible Employees
AERER

Exercise Price
i3

HKS

B

5.04
9.98

Exercisable Period

8

18/07/2010-17/07/2017
11/10/2016-10/10/2023
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY (Cont’'d)

The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of HK$1.85
per share on the basis of binomial model (the “Model”). The significant inputs into
the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the date of grant of
HK$9.98 per share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 2.09%, an expected
option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of 45% and annual dividend
yield of 9%. HK$3,959,000 amortised fair value of share options for the 2016 Financial
Year was charged to the consolidated income statement (2015: HK$3,852,000).

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company’s share options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because
change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value
of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted to the Directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements also constitute continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions not exempted under the Listing Rules 14A.33 respectively:

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP

Sale and purchase of knitted fabrics to Crystal International Limited (“Crystal”)
together with its subsidiaries ("Crystal Group”) and associates pursuant to the new
agreement (the “Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric New Master
Agreement”) dated 26 June 2015 between the Company and Crystal relating to
sale and purchase of knitted fabric manufactured or owned by the Group with term
extended to 31 March 2018. Details of the Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of Knitted
Fabric New Master Agreement and annual caps were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 26 June 2015. Transactions under the Crystal Group Sale and
Purchase of Knitted Fabric New Master Agreement for the 2016 Financial Year did
not exceed the annual cap of HK$2,000 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Crystal, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT
Limited, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and hence a connected person of the
Company. Crystal Group is therefore also regarded as connected person of the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(2) SALE OF PRODUCTS TO HC COMPANIES

The Group sells knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi has substantial
interest (the "HC Companies”). Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung
(a Director), and hence he and the HC Companies, are regarded as connected
persons of the Company by virtue of Listing Rule 14A.07. Transactions with HC
Companies were on normal commercial terms where all percentage ratios on
an annual basis were less than 0.1%, and were fully exempted under Listing Rule
14A.76(1).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) was established by the Board with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the 2016 Financial Year and discussed with the management
and the auditor of the Company on the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and internal controls and financial reporting matters.

Pursuant to the recent development of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, updated “Terms of Reference” for Audit Committee was accepted in March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 39 to 50 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant events after the 2016 Financial Year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2016 Financial Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor
of the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance to
enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard interests of shareholders of
the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure that business activities and decision making processes are properly regulated.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company throughout the 2016 Financial Year.

With effect from 1 July 2015, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, the chairman and an executive director,
has been appointed as the chief executive officer, and hence the Company does not
comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer in Mr. Wan provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of the Group's business
strategies currently and in the foreseeable future. The Group will nevertheless review
the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the Model Code throughout the 2016 Financial Year.

THE BOARD

The overall management of business of the Group is vested to the Board. The Board
is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives of
the Group and ensuring that interest of shareholders are protected. Daily operations
and administration of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and the
management.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently has 9 members consisting of 2 executive Directors, 4 non-executive
Directors and 3 INEDs. Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this
annual report and are available on the website of the Company. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships among Directors. The list of
Directors and their role and function are published on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with Directors having sales and marketing
experience and technical knowledge in fabric business, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skill is appropriate for effective
decision making, taking into account the nature and scope of business operations and
development of the Group. The Board considers that each of the Non-executive Directors
and INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board.
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bEERRE

THE BOARD (Cont'd)

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont'd)

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors
and management in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

THE BOARD MEETING

The Board meets at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened when
deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year
has been informed to each Director. The attendance record of the Directors is set out in
the table on page 41 of this annual report.

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Board held 4 meetings to approve interim and final
results announcements, interim report and annual report, to consider dividend policy,
to discuss significant issues and general operation of the Company.

Notices of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All the Directors are given opportunity to
include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the Board
meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate background
information and supporting analysis are made available to the Directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are given separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management for further information and
enquiries. The Company Secretary and senior management attends all the meetings
of the Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the directors/
substantial shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the Board meeting.
Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted in the
quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal whatsoever in which he or any of his associates (including any person
who would be deemed to be an “associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has
any material interest, except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board
meeting is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly made in
the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

THE BOARD MEETING (Cont'd)

Directors have access to advices and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes of the Board/
Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details, the matters considered by
participants of such meetings and decisions reached are forwarded to participants for
comments within a reasonable time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary,
which are open for inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information to allow
the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek independent professional
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advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary, with the approval of the Board.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT THE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and AGM during the

2016 Financial Year are set out as follows:

BUEXER  BRAAARAXNM -

i E S BT

Meetings attended/Meetings held

BEEN06FHMBEFREHNRALFESER
BEVLZBE FWNEREES RERZEEEH
RBEAFERE 2 REE#IIImT

HEBRRE SR NH
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
ESR ExZEE FMzZEe REZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FEREE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFEITHAEE) 4/4 N/A 1/1 22 11
Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman) SRREE (BFE) 4/4 N/A 11 22 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung EERLE 24 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Mr. IP Ping Im ERMEE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong ARREE 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
Mr. LAM Wing Tak (ceased to be a member M %4 (H2015%F7 818 # 3/4 N/A N/A 1/2 1/1
of RC/NC since 1 July 2015) THETFNZES /R4%
ZEEBNKE)
INEDs BIkHTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael Bk EL 3/4 4/4 1/1 22 01
Mr. NG Ching Wah MEELE 4/4 4/4 11 22 WAl
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel HEBI&R £ 4/4 4/4 1/1 22 0/1
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

With effect from 1 July 2015, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, the chairman and an executive director,
has been appointed as the chief executive officer, and hence the Company does not
comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer in Mr. Wan provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of the Group's business
strategies currently and in the foreseeable future. The Group will nevertheless review the
structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances. The Board is headed
by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, with the assistance of the
Vice Chairman, Tsang Kang Po.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and be provided with adequate
information in a timely manner.

INEDs

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise
throughout the 2016 Financial Year.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a Director of the Company and of the business and operating activities and
development of the Company. Every Director is required to devote sufficient time and
involvement in the affairs of the Board and material matters of the Company and to
serve the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise,
qualification and professionalism.

Each executive Director is responsible for management of the different functions of
business of the Group.

The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised their opinion on
business strategy of the Company and reviewed financial and operation performance
of the Group.

The INEDs serve relevant function of bringing independent judgement on issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The INEDs are all or a majority of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

All Directors have been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and regulatory
matters to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under applicable
laws and regulations. A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided to each
Director and has been updated.
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MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.
Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of the latest operations
and performance of the Group and to monitor and ensure the management carry out
directions and strategies set by the Board correctly and appropriately.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a Director to fill
a casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who
are experienced and competent and able to fulfill fiduciary duties and duties of skill,
care and diligence would be recommended to the Board.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at the AGM, the
shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are published on the website of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years and each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to
the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) was appointed for a specific
term of two years. The term of the appointment has been extended thereafter.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election pursuant
to the Articles.

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with comprehensive and tailored
induction of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of our factory in China
on the first occasion of his appointment.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the next following general meeting after appointment.

At every AGM, one-third of the Directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Directors appointed by
the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above shall be
taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being but
shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details
made available to shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on their
re-election.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be timely
disclosed to shareholders by announcement and shall include in such announcement,
reasons given by the Director for his resignation.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company from time to time updates
the Directors on the latest development on the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Cont'd)

According to the training record provided by the Directors, a summary of training record
of all Directors during the 2016 Financial Year is as follows:
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Topics on training covered

PR E R ERE

Corporate
governance
TEER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FEREE
Mr. TSANG Kang Po BB E
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung gEhkst B
Mr. IP Ping Im S g B
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong BBRRTE B
Mr. LAM Wing Tak MREIBSEE B
INEDs BUKHTES
Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael PRAA B L A B
Mr. NG Ching Wah HBELE A B
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel e B &8 S A B
Type of trainings

A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

B. Reading materials

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each chaired by different
INED, to assist the Board for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the
Board meetings.

The revised terms of reference setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been reviewed by the Board with reference to the CG Code and are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing,
overseeing and supervision of the effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control systems and risk management.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel; Mr. Ng Ching Wah
and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INEDs). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow
of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the
auditor, the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the 2016
Financial Year and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The
Annual Report for the 2016 Financial Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2016 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Audit Committee in respect of 2016 Financial Year included approving
the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor; reviewing
the unaudited interim financial information and interim results announcement for the six
months ended 30 September 2015; reviewing the audited annual financial information
and final results announcement for 2016 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group's
internal audit department, assessing the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk
management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the whistleblowing
policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The attendance of the Directors
for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the table on page 41 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor.

For 2016 Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Company’s auditor were as follows:

BT
FEEZRTS

Audit Services
Non-audit Services
- Tax consultation services and review
interim financial information
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor and concluded that in their opinion such services did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board on re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the ensuing year and
the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
with due regard to diversity of the Board and management of the Board succession.

The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Dr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel (who are INEDs); Mr. Tsang Kang Po and Mr. Wan Wai
Loi (who are executive Directors). Mr. Ng Ching Wah is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee met once during the 2016 Financial Year and adopted the
board diversity policy (“the Policy”). The Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of factors, including but not limited to educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, industry experience, age, gender and
ethnic origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and relevant provisions
under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and ethnic origin will not be set
when short-listing of director’s candidates. The major work performed by the Nomination
Committee in respect of the 2016 Financial Year included assessing independence of the
independent non-executive directors and make recommendation in compliance with
the Policy on re-election of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, Mr. Choi Kin Chung and Dr. Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael as Directors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. The attendance
of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table on page
41 of this annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, a separate ordinary resolution will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting to approve the re-election of Dr. Chan as an
INED.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management of the Group with reference
to the nature of their work, complexity of the responsibilities and performance and
to make recommendations to the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any
discussion about his own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are INEDs) and Mr. Tsang Kang Po
and Mr. Wan Wai Loi (who are executive Directors). Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2016 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2016 Financial Year included
reviewing the remuneration of the Directors and senior management with reference
to the remuneration level of directors and senior management of comparable listed
companies. The attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration Committee meeting
is set out in the table on page 41 of this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors’ fee shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments shall from time to time
be determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities
and subject to a review by the Remuneration Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As an employee of the Company, Mr. Chou Yung, the Company Secretary that
supports the Board by ensuring the Board procedures are followed, advising the Board
on governance matters and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors. During the 2016 Financial Year, Mr. Chou undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge. Profile
of Company Secretary is set out on page 13 of this annual report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2016 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of financial position
of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Company'’s interim report and annual report are prepared and published
in accordance with statutory requirements and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
in a timely manner required under the Listing Rules. Directors are provided with
adequate information to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information on matters for their approval. Furthermore, Directors are provided
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance to enable the Directors to discharge
their duties.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibility
to shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 51 to 52 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safequard
shareholders’investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to time
reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems in order to ensure that they meet with
the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the 2016 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and training programmes
and budget through the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee with
assistance of an international independent risk consulting firm.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with shareholders
and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy of information disclosure
to shareholders and to the protection in the interests of shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and review it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote effective
communication, the Group maintains a website, allowing shareholders to access
updates on the Company’s particulars where the Company’s announcements, financial
information, shareholders’ communication policy and other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders through general meeting
of the Company to communicate with shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, the
representative of each committee and the external auditor have attended the general
meeting to answer any questions from shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed
at general meetings on each substantially separate issue. A shareholder is permitted to
appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.

The notice of AGM was sent to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and the notice of all other general meetings to be sent at least 10 clear
business days.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Cont'd)

VOTING BY POLL

At the general meeting, the Chairman exercised his power under the Articles to put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll and explained detailed
procedures for conducting a poll, and answered questions from shareholders. The results
of the poll, if any, are published on websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one- tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company may, in accordance with requirements and procedures set out in the
Articles of Association of the Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company and putting forward proposals at the
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new resolutions at general
meetings under Cayman lIslands law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out above.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
(Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong and
Telephone: (852) 2862 8555).

Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries together
with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail address,
by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
ir@pacific-textiles.com for attention of the Company Secretary.

The Board also encourages shareholders to attend general meetings to make enquiries
with the Board directly.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company is published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the 2016 Financial Year, there
is no change to the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) set out on pages
53 to 137, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2016, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B RS
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AAZBED (AT R [FfFI)) 2 &EHIER
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BURHERE

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY (Contd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2016

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Falik

HE2016F3A318IEFE

BBER

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FABT
Revenue WA 5 6,927,614 6,906,883
Cost of sales B E R 24 (5,625,110) (5,728,977)
Gross profit ER 1,302,504 1,177,906
Other income and other gains/(losses) — net HAa WA R B A las (&)
— F8 23 80,688 109,075
Distribution and selling expenses DM EHERY 24 (97,983) (81,539)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITHRA X 24 (125,816) (94,605)
Operating profit R R 1,159,393 1,110,837
Finance income IEHA 26 22,544 19,532
Finance costs TSR 26 (18,200) (6,960)
Share of profits of associates DIGEE R R 2@ 9 36,311 34,213
Reversal of provision for impairment loss on Rl R E 2z R EEE
interest in an associate B R E 9 39,900 33,200
Gain on disposal of certain interest in an associate HEBA N TS TR 2 W 9 54,941 -
Share of losses of joint ventures NIEEERRIZEE 10 - (384)
Gain on disposal of interests in joint ventures HENEE R RS ERE 10 - 29,265
Profit before income tax FR{8HATEF 1,294,889 1,219,703
Income tax expense FrS B 27 (172,194) (150,037)
Profit for the year FERA 1,122,695 1,069,666
Profit attributable to: THIATREMERT -
Equity holders of the Company ViN/NETP - F =V IN 1,125,530 1,074,785
Non-controlling interests FEFE M 2 (2,835) (5119
1,122,695 1,069,666
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FRNARREIERFEE AESL
equity holders of the Company for w2 BAREF
the year (expressed in HKS$ per share) (ABRAETIIR)
~ basic — &R 28 0.78 0.74
~ diluted — 8 28 0.78 0.74
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. ~ BEMt 2 M FETh b E4R & A E MK N AT ik 2
7 o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2016

FRRERER

HE2016F3A318IEFE

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FH T FAT
Profit for the year FEERF 1,122,695 1,069,666
Other comprehensive income: Hib2EWA -
ltemns that have been or may be reclassified B EHR R ER
to profit or loss "IEH
Release of reserve upon disposal of interests HEE & QR ERRRR
in joint ventures 2 = 4,322
Currency translation differences ISR = EE (111,946) (3,529)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHEESREENAE
financial assets U =5 - 29
Release of available-for-sale financial assets HERFRIHEE
reserve upon disposal CREERE (47) -
(111,993) 822
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZERALE 1,010,702 1,070,488
Attributable to: THA TR
Equity holders of the Company RATRIERFFEA 1,016,563 1,076,594
Non-controlling interests FEPE S R (5,861) (6,106)
1,010,702 1,070,488

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEn

&AL =
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET TREEEER
As at 31 March 2016 201653 A31H
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
k=S FHExT FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights £ b s A 6 49,133 52,648
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB R 7 1,511,148 1,411,169
Interests in associates REE QA 2 #Ex 9(a) 237,312 222,820
Interests in joint ventures REERAZER 10 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESEE 11 1,741 1,827
Prepayments for land use rights and property, TH{ERERYE - BRE K&
plant and equipment EONEENE O 14 87,264 71,723
1,886,598 1,760,187
Current assets REEE
Inventories =g 12 1,016,105 965,542
Trade and bills receivables YR R EE 13 935,217 800,188
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & BB R EMERGRIA 14 97,852 114,786
Amounts due from associates JE Y & N B SR IE 9(b) 43,189 40,254
Derivative financial instruments PTEEHMIA 15 = 2,639
Tax recoverable FRIE [ U - 18,150
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHEER 16 1,452,483 2,025,419
3,544,846 3,966,978
Total assets EEH#E 5,431,444 5,727,165
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders of AATESEE ARGER
the Company
Share capital &N 17 1,446 1,446
Share premium & =B 17 1,453,188 1,453,188
Reserves i 18 1,905,465 2,042,081
3,360,099 3,496,715
Non-controlling interests el e £ (8,167) (2,306)
Total equity R 3,351,932 3,494,409
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

= AR =3 =)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont'd) GREERER (B)
As at 31 March 2016 7201653 A31H
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
k=S FHET FHT
LIABILITIES 8f&
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings BE 19 144,409 144,409
Deferred income tax liabilities REREHAR 20 28,955 12,178
173,364 156,587
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings R 19 686,473 987,911
Trade and bills payables ERBERRERE 21 783,353 746,932
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B KR E fh e IR 22 360,338 305,838
Amount due to an associate FETEE & R B ZRIE 9(c) 2,479 4,574
Derivative financial instruments PTESHMIA 15 3,704 2,349
Current income tax liabilities NEAFTBR A E 69,801 28,565
1,906,148 2,076,169
Total liabilities EEHAE 2,079,512 2,232,756
Total equity and liabilities EzkEEBEEE 5,431,444 5,727,165

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. B Z I sE Ty F4RE MBI ik 2

BB e

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on  EERBER2016%F6 A23 At iR E B KR E

23 June 2016 and were signed on its behalf: WREREERHEE
Wan Wai Loi Tsang Kang Po
FER BHK
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2016

GAEREBRR
HE2016F3A318IEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

RAFEREE AR
Non-
Share Share controlling
capital premium Reserves Sub-total interests Total
RA& RAGRE 1 Nt FEHEER fag
Note HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
MizE T T Tin T Tir T
(Note 17) (Note 17) (Note 18)
(Mizx17) (Mizx17) (MizE18)
Balance at 1 April 2014 R2014F4 810 2 &8 1446 1,453,188 2,480,379 3,935,013 3,800 3,938813
Comprehensive income: 2EBA
Profit for the year ERaA - - 1,074,785 1,074,785 (5119) 1,069,666
Other comprehensive income: Hin2EBA
Currency translation differences G E =R = = (2,542) (2,542) (987) (3,529)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale MR ESREE
financial assets AhEkE l - - 29 29 - 29
Release of reserve upon disposal of interests ~ HEA S Al ERE
in joint ventures il A = = 4322 4322 = 4302
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax - 2 EM AL - B FHE = - 1809 1809 (987) 822
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - - 1,076,594 1,076,594 (6,106) 1,070,488
Transactions with owners: HBEEARS
Share-based compensation MR EER 2 RE - - 3,852 3,852 - 3852
Dividends kS = = (1,518744) (1518744) - (1,518,744)
Total transactions with owners BREARGEE = = (1,514:892) (1,514:892) = (1,514:892)
Balance at 31 March 2015 M20155F3A318 2488 1446 1453,188 2,042,081 3,496,715 (2,306) 3494409
Balance at 1 April 2015 W2015F4R1 R 288 1,446 1,453,188 2,042,081 3,496,715 (2,306) 3,494,409
Comprehensive income: 2HABA
Profit for the year FREEF - - 1,125,530 1,125,530 (2,835) 1,122,695
Other comprehensive income: HEth2EBA
Currency translation differences NEREER - - (108,920) (108,920) (3,026) (111,946)
Release of available-for-sale financial assets ~ HERRR A HESH
reserves upon disposal BERE - - (47) (47) - (47)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax £ 2 EWA LS - MEFIA = = (108,967) (108,967) (3,026) (111,993)
Total comprehensive income 2ARALE - - 1,016,563 1,016,563 (5,861) 1,010,702
Transactions with owners: HBEEARS
Share-based compensation MR EER 2 RE - - 3,959 3,959 - 3,959
Dividends RE - - (1,157,138) (1,157,138) - (1,157,138)
Total transactions with owners REEARGEE = = (1,153179)  (1,153,179) - (1,153,179)
Balance at 31 March 2016 R2016F3 7310 2 &8 1,446 1,453,188 1,905,465 3,360,099 (8,167) 3,351,932
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  B&M{ Z B s Tyt F4R & M TSR R T ] sk 2
BB o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

= A hvrgl=1
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZE2016F3A31AILEFE
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHBT
Cash flow from operating activities RETHFBRERE
Cash generated from operations EBEELECZRSE 30(a) 1,262,434 1,249,195
Interest paid 2HE (18,200) (6,960)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBRER (32,114) (137,510)
PRC income tax paid BB SR (46,450) (65,861)
PRC dividends withholding tax paid 2R BRI (24,894) (32,275)
1,140,776 1,006,589
Cash flow from investing activities RETBFBESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE W - BE &R (353,920) (417,993)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BEREE
plant and equipment Z PR 5RIE 30(b) 3,736 7,451
Dividends received from associates I BB & R a2 IR E 9(a) 18,705 27,629
Proceeds from disposal of interests in HESERRESPTEHRIEA
joint ventures 10 - 51,040
Proceeds from disposal of certain interest in HEB S N RHA TESTENIE
an associate 9(d) 100,268 -
Placement of short-term bank deposits TFARBRITIER 16 (881,628) (1,181,602)
Release of short-term bank deposits BRBR A2 BRIRI T 3K 16 1,181,602 602,304
Interest income received 2L EHA 20,984 11,350
89,747 (899,821)
Cash flow from financing activities BMETHFFEHRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBIRITEE (987,911) =
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITIEE B RIAE 686,570 1,085,234
Dividends paid BRI E (1,157,138) (1,518,744)
(1,458,479) (433,510)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R&RFESZ(EEB EINTFHE (227,956) (326,742)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April R4A1BRERIREEFBEIER 843,817 1,173,965
Currency translation differences GNEE A T = R (45,006) (3,406)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March M3A31MBZESREESEEER 16 570,855 843,817

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. ~ BEMt Z M EETh b 4R & B KR A AT i 2

5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of textile
products. Its production bases located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and Vietnam.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is PO. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2016.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, and the recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

60

(a)

()

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretation to existing
standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards are mandatory for the accounting
period beginning on 1 April 2015 and relevant to the Group. The adoption
of these amendments to standards has no impact on the published results
for the current and prior periods and the financial position of the Group,
other than for certain additional disclosures.

HKAS 19 (Amendment), “Employee benefits”

Annual improvements 2010 — 2012 cycle
Annual improvements 2011 - 2013 cycle

New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 April
2015 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the following set
out below:

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2015 / 2016 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT (8)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEXEHEIFTEHBEME (4)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not

2.1 fRREE (F)
(b) ERMIERLEMZFTETER L E

effective (Contd)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments, addresses the classification, measurement
and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in
HKAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model
and establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets:
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI")
and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on
the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in OCl not recycling. There is now a
new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment
model used in HKAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes in
own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for
hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness
tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and
hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one
management actually use for risk management purposes.

Contemporaneous documentation is still required but is different to that
currently prepared under HKAS 39. The standard is effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption is permitted.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9's full impact.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not

62

(©)

effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers, deals with revenue
recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information
to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts
with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of
a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the

benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces HKAS 18 ‘Revenue’

and HKAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier
application is permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases, provides new provisions for the accounting treatment
of leases which no longer allows lessees to recognise leases outside of the
balance sheet. Instead, all non-current leases must be recognised in the
form of assets (for the right of use) and financial liabilities (for the payment
obligations) in the consolidated balance sheet. Short-term leases of less
than twelve months and leases of low-value assets are exempt from such
reporting obligation. The new standard will therefore result in a recognition
of prepaid operating leases, increase in right-of-use assets and increase
in lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. In the consolidated
income statement, as a result, the annual rental and amortisation expenses
of prepaid operating lease under otherwise identical circumstances will
decrease, while depreciation of right of use of assets and interest expense
arising from the financial liabilities will increase. The new standard is not
expected to apply until the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK (IFRIC) interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

In addition, the requirement of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during the
financial year. As a result, there are changes to presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont‘d)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont‘d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Contd)

64

(@)

Business combinations (Cont'd)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between
the fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GRURRERME (B)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEXHEFFTEHBEME (4)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Associates 23 BE QT

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s interests in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's share of the aggregate fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its investments in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of an associate” in the consolidated
income statement.
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POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Associates (Cont'd)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information of associates
has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

2.4 Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them
to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group's investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture and the Group's share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Amounts reported by the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in joint ventures are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive

directors collectively, who make strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated income statement within “finance income”
or “finance costs”.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “other income and other gains/(losses) — net”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale,
are included in other comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (Cont‘d)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land interests — classified as
operating leases and land use rights are accounted for as operating leases. They
are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the periods
of the lease or the land use right. When there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
interests classified as finance leases and all other property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEXHEITEHBEME (4)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.8 W% - MERZME ()

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land interests classified as finance leases commence amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets other than construction in progress are calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs over their estimated useful lives at
the annual rates, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance lease  Over the remaining lease term (2%)

Buildings 4% - 5%

Plant and machinery 10% — 20%

Leasehold improvements 20% - 33% or shorter of the
lease terms

Furniture and equipment 20% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20% — 25%

Computer software 10%

The assets' useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment on which construction
work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes construction
expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses. On completion,
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses if any. No
depreciation is provided for construction in progress until the asset is completed
and available for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised within in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

70

2.10Financial assets
2101 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

@

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

c

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amount due from associates and cash and bank balances
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT (8)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEEHFITEHBFEME (F)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.10Financial assets (Cont'd) 200 EMEE (8)

2102 Recognition and measurement 2000 FEFREAG B

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “other income and other gains/(losses) — net” in
the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement as “other income and other gains/
(losses) — net".

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont‘d)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
or the counterparty.

2.12Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT (8)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEEHITEHBFEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

WM EMEERE (B)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Contd)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement.

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

2.14Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and
work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
In the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities.

2.17 Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

When any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to
owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or reissued.

2.18Trade, bills and other payables

Trade, bills and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade, bills
and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT (8)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEEHITEHBFEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.19Borrowings 219 B8

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates and joint ventures operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(b) Retirement benefits

(c)

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit scheme under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

The schemes are generally funded through payments to state/
trustee-administered funds. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).
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2.21 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

78

(c)

(@

Share-based compensation (Contd)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statements, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (hominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the
employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent equity accounts.

Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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2.22 Provisions 2.22 45

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

2.23Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.
Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group's entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Sub-contracting income
Sub-contracting income is recognised when the services are rendered.

(c) Handling income
Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

(d) Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease periods.
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POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(e) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

(f) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.24Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets.

2.25 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.26 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollars (“USS”"),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese Dongs (“VND"). The Group manages
its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and monitoring
its foreign exchange exposure. The Group hedges against certain of its
exposure to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and Vietnam.
Except for certain cash and bank balances and certain inter-company
receivables denominated in foreign currencies, transactions are mainly
conducted in the functional currency of the respective group entity.
The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets and liabilities is
considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group uses forward currency contracts to hedge foreign exchange
risk. These forward currency contracts do not qualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Contd)

82

0)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

(i)

The table below illustrates the sensitivity as at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$/USS/RMB/VND
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, to the profit for the
year ended 31 March 2016, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange
impact on translation of cash and bank balance denominated in these
foreign currencies.

2016 2016%F

If USS strengthens/weakens against RMB WETHAREHE,RE
If USS strengthens/weakens against VND WETHMEENE,/ ZE
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS HARBHELAEBE
2015 2015%

If USS strengthens/weakens against RMB WETHAREAE /RE
If USS strengthens/weakens against VND WETHMEENE/ RE
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS WARBEHETAE/ RE

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits and bank loans, details of which are disclosed
in Note 16 and Note 19 respectively, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

The Group's bank deposits and bank loans are subject to variable
rates which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

If the market interest rates for short-term bank deposits and bank loans
had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 March 2016 would have been approximately HK$976,000 (2015:
HK$968,000) higher/lower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

(c)

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, derivative financial instruments and cash and bank balances.

Substantially all the cash and bank balances, as detailed in Note 16, are held
in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and
Vietnam; all derivative financial instruments are also entered into with major
financial institutions, which management believes are of high credit quality.
Management does not expect any losses arising from non-performance by
these financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Credit quality of customers is assessed based on
their financial position, past default history and other factors. Normally the
Group does not require collateral from trade debtors. The existing debtors
have no significant defaults in the past. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables generally falls within the recorded
allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made.

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through adequate committed credit facilities.

The Group's primary cash requirements are for additions and upgrades to
property, plant and equipment, purchases of land, capital injections into
subsidiaries, and payments for purchases and operating expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through funds generated from its
operations, bank loans and other borrowings.

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and has
available funding through adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.
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3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd)
The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the consolidated
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. This has not included
borrowing from non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of HK$144,409,000
which is considered as quasi equity. The amounts disclosed in the tables are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

FRBBRRMEE (B)

3 MBERERE (H)

3.1 MERBREE (#)
() B EE (&)

TRBZEER ARG RAE
ERGAEEEREAHNIHAY
Fer Az BEaEBRLZS
e ETBERBEERTZD
B AR R ESEENESR
144,409,000/ 7T c MR P ETE 2
SHABHNERTHEBEESRE -

2016 2015
2016%F 20155
Within 1 year  Within 1 year
—F R —FR
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#& T FHET
Bank loans and interest thereon RITERRELEE ZFE 686,473 989,175
Trade and bills payables FERBR R R RIR 783,353 746,932
Accruals and other payables FETIE B M E AL RN 08 360,338 305,838
Amount due to an associate JE {=T Bt o R B R0E 2,479 4,574
1,832,643 2,046,519
The table below analyses the Group’s derivative financial instruments which TRAREBEIHAENIN T AEEER
will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the HEADOINHAZFerHR 2 A ERE
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The EEHETESRTIAZDH - RERF
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. R SEAGHNMERINTERSRE -
Less Between Between
than 1 1and 3 3 months Over
month months and 1 year 1 year Total
3fEA
LMER 1Z318A8 15 150t et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2016: M2016F3A31H :
Forward currency contracts: REIEEEH
Inflow A - 238,313 38,286 - 276,599
Outflow Nigan - 215,070 38,768 - 253,838
At 31 March 2015: R2015F3H31H :
Forward currency contracts: REFEEEH
Inflow A - 78919 634,975 - 713,8%
Outflow Nigus = (77,535) (620,280) - (697,815)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GRURRERME (B)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 BMRRBRER (&)

3.2 Capital risk management 32 52 ERER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's $E.Z§/i\ BHEAREALH
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders BREELE  DARRIEHER [

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, draw down or repay debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total interest bearing debt divided
by total capital. Total interest bearing debt includes bank borrowings and bills
payable as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, and total capital is the
amount of “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing
ratios were as follows:

Hv%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂx%ﬁﬁ/\ZﬂﬁT& O #E
FREZBEREBAREESKAR -

RTHEBAHBENGERE  AKEA
ﬁ%?ﬂ%&ﬂﬂ&%ﬁﬁZ%%@%ﬁ - A
BRBEEES - BITHR - ZERE
EER -

HEEMRAZER  AKRBAEAAE
t“*%é% LE R R B A
BERUBSBENE - HEEBE
B AR A BRAIZRITE
ERENEBARBARBERGAE
ERERMFI [#5] - EXARL
RO

2016 2015

2016%F 20155

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Bank loans RITEK 686,473 987,911
Bills payables R 23,104 46,187
Total interest bearing debt FTEERESE 709,577 1,034,098
Total capital BAREEE 3,351,932 3,494,409
Gearing ratio EREEL R 21.2% 29.6%

The gearing ratio decreased as the Group repaid certain bank borrowing during HRAEERAFAERE TRITE
the current year. & ALEAEBLETRE -
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FRMBRENE (B)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 HBEREE (8)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AAMEME
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value as TREHIRFTEA R EMABERN
at 31 March 2016, by level of inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair BABESHESTAREER20165F3A
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy BN AAREIERZEMIA - WA
as follows: BEERAT=EAREERILE
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities HREENXAREERMS W
(level 1). B CREFAR) (B1/E) -
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable BRTENERBEIREN - ZE
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that EXBEZABRE 2 HMtmEA -
is, derived from prices) (level 2). AREE AAmER) HE
(BRBEHR) (F2/E) -
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data BEXBEVIIKEIERMEG
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). Rz E A (BISERT B 228 A)
(F3E) -
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured TRINTAEER2016F3A318 1%
at fair value at 31 March 2016. AABEFEZEERBE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E HE2E E3E ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET FERT FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEfEECREE
(Note 11) (HHE11)
— Club debentures —gHEES - 1,741 = 1,741
- 1,741 - 1,741
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial instruments (Note 15)  $74£ 4 & T A (Ff3E15) — (3,704) — (3,704)
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3 MBEBRERE (&)
3.3 AREME ()

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value at 31 March 2015.

TRIRAEBER2015F3A318 1%
PREFEZEERAE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E H2[E H3E et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FHE T FET
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments (Note 15) #7442 T A (MffzE15) - 2,639 = 2,639
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE
(Note 11) (Mfax11)
- Equity securities —ERES 86 - - 86
— Club debentures —2EES = 1,741 = 1,741
86 4,380 - 4,466
Liabilities af&
Derivative financial instruments (Note 15)  $T4& &8t T A (M3E15) - (2,349) = (2,349)

There were no transfers between levels during the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
closing bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

H E2016%F M2015F3A31H IEFE
BEH 2 EWEEE -

EERTSEENESRTANAAE
RIBHEEANTISRETIR - EHRE
ANBMERRBLRR S - X5
B R FAALT EERBER
EEREES MZEFRERRERA
FREFZEFRETHERMERTIHR
S - RIS RR AR o NEER
ENEREENTSRER/KRTES
BRE WETABEEFIE -

REHEARRMSEENSETA ()
WHZIMTETR) MR EFNMMEE
RMETE - MEXNEENBAIER
mBgE (WA BELKBETR
A EGET - FHE—SRIANA
REFHRRIFTA EXRE A GBS
% AlZemIANARESE -
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(a) Financial assets
The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar agreements.

FRBBRRMEE (B)

3 MBERERE (H)
3.3 AREME (&)
Wn—IA % IR E K A FEAR AR AT #R
EMEHE - RSB TAIASES
=

RAEESZR T AN ERERINE
15

RBRTANTHRERZSE
HIE -

EHINES NN AR ENABE
AMENERETE  MASER
FEERME-

3ABHETHEENEMEE
@) THEE
T eMEESEN  ATHRITE
B P AR AR o

Related amounts
of recognised

financial
Gross amounts liabilities not set
of recognised off in the
financial assets balance sheet Net amounts
I RIE
EEAER
RHNE R
[=Fi: SRIBE
cREERRE HESE bk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FET
At 31 March 2016: 2016538318 :
Derivative financial assets {74 SR EE = - -
At 31 March 2015: M2015%F3A318 :
Derivative financial assets ~ $T4 & B &EE 2,639 (2,349) 290
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont'd)
(b) Financial liabilities
The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar agreements.
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BHER
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3 MBEBRERE (&)
34 EBTHEENETHMEE (B

Gross amounts
of recognised

b) HAE

T EemAEREE  JHTE
BB AR Z A RR o

Related amounts

of recognised

financial assets

financial not set off in the
liabilities balance sheet Net amounts
I RAE
EESEBR
KN E R
[=Fi SREE
SRAEARE HESRE R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FE T
At 31 March 2016: M2016F3H318 :
Derivative financial
liabilities MTETHEE - - -
At 31 March 2015: R2015%3A318 :
Derivative financial
liabilities TELRMBE 2,349 (2,349) =

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
agreements or similar arrangements above, each agreement between
the Group and the counterparty allows for net settlement of the relevant
financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In
the absence of such an election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled
on a gross basis, however, each party on the master netting agreement or
similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net
basis in the event of default of the other party.

HNZ AT TR E R BN
MHEARROEMEEMAE -
REEEEF T 2 B0 HH
HARAEETEBRFEAE
BEMBRAT  BHABNSRE
EMBEEFEE - R B UE
BIE AeBmEEMBERER
REELEER  BRFEBEX
BUBBNE T VAEEE S —
TEAR  BEBAAESBE

= i/vk
HEHE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

90

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment or reversal of impairment of interests in associates

(b

-

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group's interests in
associates, in particular when they consider objective evidence of impairment
exists, such as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the interests
in associates, significant adverse changes in the market environment, and the fair
value of the assets held by the associates. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in the income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining the recoverable amount of an interest in associates, management
has considered both the value in use and fair value less cost to disposal. In
determining value-in-use, an entity estimates either: (a) its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
associates and proceeds on disposal, or (b) the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received and proceeds on
disposal. Any impairment loss is recognised by writing down the interests in
associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Income taxes, deferred taxes and other taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions where its subsidiaries
operate. Significant judgement is required in determining provisions for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group is also exposed to other taxes and duties. Significant judgement is
required in determining these provisions. Where the final outcomes of these
matters differ from the actual results, such difference will impact the provisions
made and the earnings stated in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)

(d

-

—

(e

(f)

Deferred tax in respect of withholding tax on unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries

The amount of deferred tax liability established in respect of withholding tax
on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries may vary. The amount and timing of
the deferred tax liability provided depends on management’s future plan and
intention to re-invest the unremitted earnings in the subsidiaries or to use the
earnings for other purposes. The Group may change the plan on remitting the
earnings of subsidiaries based on the cashflow needs and future development
of the Group.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the financial position, repayment history and credit
rating of its customers and other debtors and the current market condition,
and requires the use of judgements and estimates. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.
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4 EXREFHEFTRHME (8)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(g) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights
Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less
cost to disposal. These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the assets in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group's reported balance sheet and results of
operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the income statement.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker ("CODM") has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company collectively, who review the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.

As all of the Group's business operations relate to the manufacturing and trading
of textile products with similar economic characteristics, the executive directors
review the performance of the Group as a single segment, which covers operations
conducted by subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Vietnam and associates
in the PRC and Sri Lanka. The executive directors review resources allocation and
assess performance of the Group on a regular basis based on the following financial
information:

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2015 / 2016 Annual Report
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 SAEER (&)

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Revenue L ON 6,927,614 6,906,883
Gross profit EF 1,302,504 1,177,906
Gross profit margin (%) FEFIE (%) 18.8% 17.1%
Operating expenses EERY 223,799 176,144
Operating expenses/Revenue (%) EEFIY A (%) 3.2% 2.6%
EBITDA (Note (i)) FIE - BIA - 8 MEIEADE A
(P EG)) 1,445,075 1,358,567
EBITDA/Revenue (%) ME -~ HIA - P8 LA
s M%) 20.9% 19.7%
Finance income BRI 22,544 19,532
Finance costs BF TSR AR 18,200 6,960
Depreciation and amortisation EmEEE GTAEERAR
(included in cost of sales and operating expenses) KR 154,530 151,436
Share of profits of associates D AG BN B 36,311 34,213
Reversal of provision for impairment loss on R—EE R EZ
interest in an associate R EEERERD 39,900 33,200
Gain on disposal of certain interest in an associate HEBL N aE TR Z 54,941 -
Share of losses of joint ventures DA E N RIEE - 384
Gain on disposal of interests in joint ventures HEAE A REEMEHE - 29,265
Income tax expense st 172,194 150,037
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 2N A5 H A FE (L% F 1,125,530 1,074,785
Net profit margin (%) 41 R 2K (96) 16.2% 15.6%
Total assets BERE 5,431,444 5,727,165
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company  ZANA R A AFE(EREZR 3,360,099 3,496,715
Cash and bank balances IR ERITAE R 1,452,483 2,025,419
Borrowings BE 830,882 1,132,320
Inventories FE 1,016,105 965,542
Inventory turnover days (Note (ii)) FEREH S (FEE>)) 64 67
Trade and bills receivables FEUEBR R & =g 935,217 800,188
Trade and bills receivables turnover days (Note (ii)) FEUS AR 3R I SR B H £ (B REG) 46 43
Trade and bills payables FENBER NER 783,353 746,932
Trade and bills payables turnover days (Note (ii) FETBR R R S8R5 B 20 (FEEG)) 50 50
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i) EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before finance income, finance costs, income
tax expense, depreciation and amortisation.

(i) The turnover days are calculated based on the simple average of the beginning of
the year and the end of the year balances.

The Group's revenue represents sales of goods. An analysis of revenue by
geographical location, as determined by the destination where the products were

delivered, is as follows:

TR M RENE (8)

N

5 DERER (H)

BRE

() FE - BIR - FTEREHINENIRESR
RARFTHBWA - BIEKA - ST
3 FEMEEATEN o

(i) ﬂ%E%ﬁ(B*ﬁ%ﬁE%ﬂEﬁiﬁ%éﬁ% e
FHHFE

AEBENBRAEEREERE - K&
DZWANRERRZNZ B e BT

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
PRC R 1,983,634 2,616,839
Vietnam jagea) 1,642,865 1,211,203
Hong Kong B 798,196 629,147
America =M 715,348 614,268
Other South East Asia (Note (i) HeRmEEBEx (M6 666,141 731,712
Sri Lanka SRS 486,213 582,554
India NE 111,231 100,052
Haiti A 101,108 120,022
Africa FEM 77,291 100,879
Others EHAih 345,587 200,207
6,927,614 6,906,883

Note: 5T

(i) Other South East Asia mainly includes Indonesia, Cambodia and Thailand.

The top customer accounted for approximately 40% (2015: 35%) of the Group's
revenue; all other customers individually accounted for less than 10% of the Group's

revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) me iRk (8)
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 2EHER (&)
The Group’s non-current assets are located in the following geographical areas: AEBZERDEEMNIATHR
Group
A
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
PRC AR 1,441,326 1,295,745
Hong Kong BB 81,766 75,240
Vietnam W 245,554 196,418
Sri Lanka HTEER 117,882 192,686
Others Hi 70 98
1,886,598 1,760,187
6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 TihfFEEE
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments NEBR T FREZHERZATBNKE
and their net book values are analysed as follows: MMAFHRIE  EEEFESTET -
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FExT
At 1 April R4H1H 52,648 53,930
Currency translation differences SN ET 2R (2,187) 4
Amortisation e (1,328) (1,286)
At 31 March M3HA31H 49,133 52,648
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

96

FRMBRENE (B)

7 UE - BEERE

Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold Plantand  fumiture and Motor Computer ~ Construction
[and Buildings machinery ~ equipment vehicles Software  in progress Total
il S
5
gL BT EEREE GARRG A& e LG ERIE @it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T T Tk T T Tt T T
At 1 April 2014 R201454818
Cost A 4260 1,098,622 2,181,567 196,100 28140 54237 76943 3639869
Accumulated depreciation Z2ifE (1,049) (280,108) (1,991,300) (166,386) (17.938) - - (2456,781)
Net book amount RERE 320 818,514 190,267 29714 10,202 54237 76943 1,183,088
Year ended 31 March 2015 BENISEIANALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 3211 818514 190,267 29,714 10202 54237 76,943 1,183,088
Currency translation differences g R - 160 m (18) (12) - (416) (63)
Additions AE = = 35733 3973 8,155 10,591 294,169 382,621
Disposals and write-off HE A - (1657) (1,214) (1,081) (379) - - (4327)
Depreciation i 9%) (45068) (85,005) (16,299) (3682) - - (150,150}
Transfers & - 36395 44,604 20,561 - - (101,560) -
Closing net book amount ERETFE 3015 808344 184608 6,850 14,288 64828 269,136 1411,169
At31 March 2015 R2015%3A31R
Cost A 4260 1132275 218719 235,866 35,186 64828 269,136 3928747
Accumulated depreciation Z2iE (1,145) (32391 (2002588) (169,016) (2089) = - (2517578)
Net book amount RERE 3115 808,344 184,608 66,850 14,288 64828 269,136 1411,169
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE16F3A3ALFE
Opening net book amount ERERE 3,115 808,344 184,608 66,850 14,288 64,828 269,136 1,411,169
Currency translation differences R £ - (33,009) (12,026) (2,645) (377) (476) (11,164) (59,697)
Additions RE - 1,595 21,704 16,690 5475 14,307 271,200 336,971
Disposals and write-off HERHH - (7,765) (13,457) (1,586) (1,285) - - (24,093)
Depreciation nE (97) (49,859) (67,871) (26,890) (4,47) (4,014) - (153,202)
Transfers B - 100,028 260,534 59,712 - - (420,274) -
Closing net book amount ERETFE 3018 819,334 379,492 12,131 13,630 74,645 108898 1,511,148
At31 March 2016 R2016%3A31R
Cost A 4,260 1,172,221 2,323,785 288,178 36,907 78,614 108,898 4,012,863
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (1242) (352,887) (1,944,293 (176,047) (23277) (3,969) - (2501,715)
Net book amount FEFE 3,018 819,334 379,492 112,131 13,630 74,645 108,898 1,511,148
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated income statement is analysed

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HRBRENE (B)

7 UE - BERRE (H)
RiRa KR AR ZITER o i

BBEn

as follows: T
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Cost of sales HER AR 146,343 146,868
General and administrative expenses — M RITEE X 6,859 3,282
153,202 150,150

8 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 and 2015:

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Shares held directly by the Company:

ARFERRARS

Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd.

Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd.

Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd.

Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd.

Place of

incorporation

and kind of legal entity
L 2R
EAERER

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

ERREES
AREEAT

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

EERLES
BREMAT

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

RBRARE
ARRERF

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

AERARE
BREEAT]

Particulars of issued

share capital
BEf
Rz E

HKS 1
187

HKS 1
1587

HKS 1
18T

HKS 1
187

8 KMEAR
TRANRR2016%F X2015F3A831H 2
BAR :

Equity interest

attributable to the Group
%8

EfERARR
2016 2015

2016% 20155
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Equity interest
attributable to
non-controlling interests

FRF R
EfsRAER
2016
20165

2015
20156

Principal activities
and place of
operation

IREHR
EXm

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

RERR -
ERRIES

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

RERR
ABRAES

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

REHR -
REBRARS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

RERR -
EBRAES
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SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 and 2015: (Cont'd)

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Shares held directly by the Company:
KARERBERG :

Solid Ally International Ltd.

Lehan Resources Ltd.

Fast Right Group Ltd.
FREERRARA

Product Champion Limited

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
ARRMEEERS -

Fast Right Group (HK) Ltd.

FR%E (&%) BRAT

Pacific Textiles Limited

ERGRARAR

Pacific SPM Investment Limited

BRABGHRERRAT

Place of

incorporation

and kind of legal entity
SRR L ER
EAERER

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

EERAES
AREMEAT

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

AERAES
BREEAT]

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

ERRARS
EREALH

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

EERLES
AREAAH

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&% AREELA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&R AREELA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&t ARAMLA

Particulars of issued

share capital

BRITRARE

HKS 1
1T

HKS 1
187

US$1,000
1,000%7T

USs1
1%

USs1
1%

HK$103,000,000
103,000,00077C

HKS 1
157
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8 KEAR (H)

Equity interest
attributable to the Group
r5E
EltRARR
2016 2015
2016% 2015%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

& : (&)

Equity interest
attributable to
non-controlling interests
FEbMER
EfRARR
2016 2015

20164 20156

TRIIRR20165 KX2015F3831H 2 Kt
B

Principal activities
and place of
operation

IREHR
EXH

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

RERK
RERARE

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

RERR -
AERLEE

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

RARR
ERRIES

Investment holding,
British Virgin Islands

RERR
RERARE

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
RERR  BF

Trading of textile
products, Hong
Kong

nEnEs B

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
RARR  BE
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8 MBATE (F)
TRIIRR20165 KX2015F3831H Z K
BAaE : (58)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 and 2015: (Cont'd)

Place of Equity interest Principal activities
incorporation Particulars of issued Equity interest attributable to and place of
Name of subsidiaries and kind of legal entity share capital attributable to the Group non-controlling interests ~ operation
FMALBER S ] FEbMER TEXHR
WEARER HEARRER BRARAFE EltRARR EiERAER EEH
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20156 20165 20156
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
KARMESERG :
Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Macau, limited liability MOP1,030,000 100% 100% - - Trading of textile
Commercial Offshore Limited company 1,0300002F9% products, Macau
ERBMBRPTRER R %R BREAAR DEmES AR
RBEERAT
Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited PRC, limited liability 15$89,700,000 100% 100% - - Manufacturing and
X (%B) pEHEERAR company 89,700,000 7T trading of textile
HE - BREAAH products, PRC
DRMRERES
i
Pacific GT Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$19,025,000 95% 95% 5% 5%  Investment holding,
liability company 19,025,000 7T British Virgin Islands
EERLES RARR
AREAAH EERIES
PCGT Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$3,900,000 71.25% 71.25% 28.75% 2875%  Investment holding,
company 3,900,000787¢ Hong Kong
B4 EREEAT RARR BE
Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited Vietnam, limited liability 1J5$48,000,000 71.25% 71.25% 28.75% 28.75%  Manufacturing and
company 48,000,000% T trading of textile
HE - BRELAF products, Vietnam
DRMRERES
it
South Shining Limited British Virgin Islands, limited USS1 95% 95% 5% 5%  Investment holding,
HEERAH liability company E3n British Virgin Islands
EERARS RERK
AREARF AERIES
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100

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill

(a) PEEEFEREBE

2016 2015
20164 201545
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
SPM Automotive Textile FIEKR (BM) ABELHEER
Co., Ltd. ("SPM Automotive”) BRAR (METIEXR]) 26,447 30,134
Textured Jersey Lanka Limited Textured Jersey Lanka Limited
(“PT Sri Lanka") [PTHTEBK]) 210,865 192,686
237,312 222,820
Movements in share of net assets of associates are as follows: PEMERFEEFEEDOT -
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April R4H1H 222,820 182,382
Currency translation differences SN BT = 7R (1,123) 654
Dividends [gs) (18,705) (27,629)
Share of profits SaK syl 36,311 34,213
Release of net assets as a result of disposal HESHEBRZEEFE (41,891) =
Reversal of provision for impairment of R—EEE AR ERRE
interest in an associate B mE 39,900 33,200
At 31 March M3A31H 237,312 222,820
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, management reassessed the
carrying amount of the Group's interest in PT Sri Lanka, and determined that
HK$39,900,000 (2015: HK$33,200,000) of the impairment previously made should
be reversed, taken into account the associate’s financial performance and
expected future market conditions. The recoverable amount of this interest in
an associate of HK$210.9 million was determined based on value-in-use, with
discount rate of 16% (2015: 16%) per annum.

The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2016 and 2015, which were held
indirectly by the Company, are as follows:

Particulars of
issued share capital

Place of incorporation

Name of associates and kind of legal entity

=5y

BE AT EB MR EEER N

SPM Automotive PRC, US$7,500,000

ENINEN limited liability company 7,500,000% 7T
FE - BREEAR

PT Sri Lanka Sri Lanka, RS2,749,266,000

PTET 2B+ limited liability company ~ 2,749,266,00041 E@REH

R BAREEAR
SPM Automotive is an unlisted company in the PRC and there is no quoted
market price available for its shares.
At 31 March 2016, the quoted market value of the Group's interest in PT Sri Lanka,

which is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, was HK$338,463,701
(2015: HK$373,803,000).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in associates.
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9 RBEARzEERENKEQRARE
(%)
(@) DHEEFEEHE (H)

REE2016F3FNBILFE > BEB
HAKERPTHEHE RS 2 IREEE
TEHFE  REEDZBERB 2H
BRIBRIBHIARRTHMR - EE LA
B i 2 B 1E39,900,0005% 7T (2015%F :
33,200,0007%8 JT) FE & & [E o I TH P B
BRAERZARESEAE21098 8
B DEREAEEMEE - HF
FEANTIREETF16% (20157 :
16%) °

20164 &2015F3A31H 2 Bt & A
A (AARRRIEERER) 2FHBNT

Equity interest

attributable to

Principal activities and

the Group place of operation
S 3 TEXBR
PEAG IR A RE 5 S
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
33% 33%  Manufacturing and trading
of vehicles related textile
products, PRC
BT AR R 4 Ak B
25
28% 40%  Manufacturing and trading

BARHEBZERER AT 2015/2016 F3R

of textile products,
Sri Lanka
HERROAnERES

ETEAR—RFBEFLHRA
LRI R TS ERE

M2016F3A318 © & & B RPTH
EWMF(—HRAHTEBRRGHEZ
AR S ETHRAT) MERFR
™ B 4533846370178 7T (20154 :
373,803,000/ 7T ) ©

REBRHE
=
8
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o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) e EB RN ()
9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 9 MREEATRZEZRENBE ARNRE
(%)
(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd) (a) PHEEFEHEEE ()
Summarised financial information for associates B ER A HEREE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for SPM Automotive and AT #5135 K RPTHT 2 3 R LA%E
PT Sri Lanka, which are accounted for using the equity method. FEANRNIT B ERE o
SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total
FIEX PTHIE B+ st
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

20165  20154F  2016%F 20154  2016%F 20154
HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$’000  HKS$'000
FH@x TH T FEx TFTHET TFExT TET

Summarised balance sheet EEEERUE

Non-current assets EMEBEE 13,239 18,587 348,177 196392 361,416 214,979
Current assets MENEE 120,951 107,145 435,447 312,721 556,398 419,866
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE - - 25,338 14309 25,338 14,309
Current liabilities mEBE 54,049 34416 224,372 85954 278,421 120,370
Net assets BESE 80,141 91,316 533,914 408850 614,055 500,166

Summarised income statement W RPE

Revenue YA 199,228 199,826 966,745 800,370 1,165,973 1,000,196
Profit for the year FE 5 A 2,349 8,497 121,483 78522 123,832 87,019

Other comprehensive income  FEE 2 EUA

for the year = - - _ - _
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 HE WA 4%

for the year 2,349 8497 121,483 78,522 123,832 87,019
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9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd)
Summarised financial information for associates (Contd)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associates

(b

-

(c)

to the carrying value of the Group's interest in associates.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HRBRENE (B)

9 REBERAZEZRENBE AANRE

(&)

(@) PHEEFEEBE (H)
BERFIMHBEEHE ()
b e RARMEEN R ERAREE
RS R BERREERN AR

SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total
FIEKR PTHTEM et
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 2015%F  2016% 2015%F 20164 2015%F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAT FExT FAT FExT FHET
Opening net assets at 1 April PAATBEWZ
BEFE 91,316 106,119 408,850 378543 500,166 484,662
Currency translation differences  JMEH & =58 (3,553) (719) (283) 2,228 (3,836) 1,509
Capital Injection AE - = 56,841 = 56,841 =
Profit for the year FRE R 2,349 8497 121,631 78522 123,980 87,019
Dividends s (9,971)  (22,581)  (53,125)  (50,443)  (63,096)  (73,024)
Closing net assets at 31 March ~ A3 A31BERZ
BEFE 80,141 91316 533,914 408850 614,055 500,166
Net assets attributable to KEBERNFEE

the Group (2016: 33%, 28%; (2016%F : 33% ~ 28% :

2015: 33%, 40%) 2015%F : 33% ~ 40%) 26,447 30,134 150,297 163,540 176,744 193674
Goodwill [EES - - 110,255 155,297 110,255 155,297
Less: Accumulated impairment 35 @ 251RE = - (46,784) (122,097) (46,784) (122,097)
Less: Unrealised gain on sale W E S TR

of machinery to an associate NElZ REBRYH - - (2,903) (4054)  (2,903) (4,054)
Interests in associates N NGk 26,447 30,134 210,865 192,686 237,312 222,820
Dividends received B U= R R I8

from associates 3,290 7,452 15,415 20,177 18,705 27,629

Amounts due from associates

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand. The amounts are denominated in USS.

Amount due to an associate

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand. The amount is denominated in RMB.

BARHEBZERER AT 2015/2016 F3R

(b) FEUERE N BRI
FEUEE & R RIRIBAEEA - 28R
RERBER - TAETIIE °

(c) FEERE QARIRA

eI B

4 AL N

FERRIRIASEES 28R
RERFEE - SEUARKETIE -
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9

10

104

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(d) Disposal of certain interests in an associate

N

TR M RENE (8)

9 REBERAZEZRENBE ARANRE

(%)
(d) HEBE QTS TR

In June 2015, the Group disposed a 10% interest in PT Sri Lanka for
HK$100,268,000 and recognised a gain of HK$50,866,000, including reversal of
the related provision for impairment of HK$30,794,000. In this connection, the
Group's interest in this associate was reduced from 40% to 30%.

In January 2016, PT Sri Lanka issued new shares to a number of investors. In
this connection, a deemed disposal gain of HK$4,075,000, being the difference
between the share of net assets in PT Sri Lanka immediately before and after
this share issuance, was recognised. In this connection, the Group’s interest in

this associate was reduced from 30% to 28%.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets
Amount due from a joint venture

’VEEFE‘E
JEJ_BZ/\ A /\

201566 A + 78 & B LA100,268,000
78 7T o & PAPTHT 2 B R10%H# & -
I 7 3R UK 2550,866,0005% JT B 1E
Fa S5 (B 1 #5 8% [8130,794,00078 T ° M

CAEERZEE AR 2SR
40%/mi30%

R2016F1H PTHFE @ KA #H T 1%
BEBITHRMD AL RIELE
W #54,075,0007% 7T (BD B2 82 bt A% 1n 2%
1T AT B 2 BE S AR D BE 1 TR APTHT 278
F TMEEEFENEZSE) ERER - H

CAREBEREZBERA R A
30%;‘5@28%

10 REE QAT ZER
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FH&T

IA

Movements in share of net assets of joint ventures are as follows:

DERERREEFELEFHNT ¢

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FHET

At 1 April ®4A18 - 15,655
Currency translation differences INEEIRE E R = 4
Return of capital BEaRE = (776)
Share of losses IR - (384)
Disposal e - (14,499)
At 31 March M3HA31H = =

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group completed the disposal of its entire
interests in joint ventures at a consideration of approximately HK$51,040,000, and
recognised a gain of HK$29,265,000. There were no contingent liabilities relating to &
the Group's interests in the joint ventures.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2015 / 2016 Annual Report

29,265,000/ 7T ) °

HE2015F3A3BILEE A5 BB
HREEDQNRIZAERZEZHEE R

%9 551,040,000/ 7T © I B #E R W
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BHER

& AR E S (4
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) e RERhE (8)
11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 11 AIREEEREE
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong B LM 2ES = 86
Club debentures SHEES 1,741 1,741
1,741 1,827
At 1 April R4A1H 1,827 1,798
Disposal k= (86) =
Fair value gains (Note 18) AnElkz (HiE8) & 29
At 31 March M3A31H 1,741 1,827
Quoted market value of listed securities EESBTE - 86
The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing bid prices at active EMBESFZARBIREBERTISK T
market. The fair values of club debentures are based on second hand market prices. EEET SH£EBESF AR BENIREZ
See Note 3.3 for further information on fair value. FHIGEEE - AN 3E@EAAREZ

HE—TEF -

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in HKS. AR ESREERSITIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FeFH Rk (8)
12 INVENTORIES 12 #8
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials ok 669,433 679,391
Work-in-progress TR 146,466 181,453
Finished goods B oh 200,206 104,698
1,016,105 965,542
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year amounted to FAGFAHERRTZTFERERN AR
approximately HK$4,959,149,000 (2015: HK$5,152,507,000). 4,959,149,00078 7T (20154F : 5,152,507,00075
JT) °
13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 13 BURRREE
2016 2015
2016%F 20155
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables FEUER SR 844,253 716,101
Bills receivables U EE 96,497 94,996
940,750 811,097
Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables B EUBERFURE & (5,533) (10,909)
935,217 800,188
Majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. Trade and bills REBKRFHHEE 2EE N F30E60
receivables were aged as follows: K o FEWBRR R IR 2 BREREF| AT
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0 - 60 days 0- 60K 829,685 701,892
61 - 120 days 61 - 120K 100,381 103,805
121 days - 1 year 121K - 14 10,684 5,400
940,750 811,097
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HRBRENE (B)

13 BRERARRRE (8)
EURA R ZBIRIA T ERIIE

2016 2015
20164 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

HKS BT 710,279 555,208
uss ETT 203,401 211,261
RMB AR 27,070 44,628
940,750 811,097

The top two customers accounted for approximately 36% (2015: 35%) and 12% (2015:
17%), respectively, of the Group’s trade and bills receivables; all other customers
individually accounted for less than 10% of the Group's trade and bills receivables.

The fair value of trade and bills receivables approximate the net book carrying
amounts.

At 31 March 2016, trade and bills receivables of approximately HK$5,533,000 (2015:
HK$10,909,000) were impaired and have been provided for. The individually impaired
receivables relate to sales proceeds receivable from customers, which have remained
long overdue and management considered the recoverability is remote.

At 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$100,858,000 (2015: HK$86,863,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

BMAZK P DR 4152 & B E KRR
5 ZH&36% (2015%F : 35%) E212% (2015
F:17%)  FBEMEPERGAEE
FEU AR R R IR D HN10% ©

Eo

EBRZ AR EEREFEMR

M20165F3A318 - BIWERREEE LD
5,533,000/ 7T (20154 : 10,909,000/ JT)
ERE R B o B E R R B FE U AR KR
EREFP ZHEEFMSHRERR  mMzE
HEMSRECAHZE BEEER
A E AR Bl R

R2016F3A31H » @ EE I RFHE Z
& U BR FX A100,858,0007 JT (2015%F -
86,863,000/8 70 ) o H EIFE T 3T RN A HE /X

follows: RECEPAM - ZEFRBERZ R
DITEIINT
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Past due by: B

0 - 60 days 0- 60K 68,138 75,954
61 - 120 days 61 — 120K 20,534 6,976
121 days - 1 year 121K - 14 12,186 3,933
100,858 86,863
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13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

FRMBRENE (B)

13 BRERRERE (8)

AREEEREREL R EREZE

follows: IR
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April R4B18 10,909 6,665
Currency translation differences NS A = R (56) (35)
(Reversal)/Provision, net (B@), #5558 (5,293) 4328
Written off 1 55 (27) (49)
At 31 March M3A318 5,533 10,909

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in
distribution and selling expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

ERERK AR B R MER D
ANRBBER D HREERA - 5
AR IR 2 TR — AR TR A Wi O FR
HNR B RFHEH o

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the net book carrying REEH  HAEERR AL EKER
amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral RZEEFE - AEBETEFFTMAIE

as security. R EER -
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14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HRBRENE (B)

14 & ~ ANREREBERRIE

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Rental, utility and other deposits e 2ARBREMEZES 10,802 16,086
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEEFEENRIE 29,776 24,844
Prepayments for purchase of machinery 5 B e TR RRIE 46,849 20,865
Prepayments for construction work RETIRTEN A - 19,295
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights U B £ b {55 PR AE TR AN SRR 40,415 31,563
Other prepayments HEMIER R 3,312 4,615
Value-added tax recoverable AU B3 (E 30,904 44,303
Interest receivable EU T B 1,560 8,182
Others Hih 21,498 16,756
185,116 186,509

Less non-current portion: WIERENE S
Prepayments for purchase of machinery 5 B e TR 3RIE (46,849) (20,865)
Prepayments for construction work BETREENFIA - (19,295)
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights e i + 3t {5 FR A TR RRIE (40,415) (31,563)
(87,264) (71,723)
Current portion TEENEL 97,852 114,786

Deposits, value-added tax recoverable, interest receivable and other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

BE - ATEEER - BRAE REM
FEYRIRIR T 5 E ¥ EHE

2016 2015
20164 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

uss$ ETT 43,735 35,871
VND WA 10,893 29,011
RMB AR 6,762 3,456
HKS BT 3,374 16,989
64,764 85,327

The book carrying amounts of deposits, value-added tax recoverable, interest
receivable and other receivables approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the book carrying value
of deposits, value-added tax recoverable, interest receivable and other receivables.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

BE - ATEEER - RS REM
FEYRIA 2 REEEE QA ERE

REER RREERRA LGRS
A ERE R R B e H il WK
HZEREE - AR B &R A TR
a fEFELR
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15

16

110

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward foreign currency contracts RHEISNE S A
— Assets —AE
- Liabilities —afE

FRMBRENE (B)

15 {TEE®mT A

2016
20164
HK$’000
FET

(3,704)

2015
2015%F
HK$'000
FHET

2,639
(2,349)

At 31 March 2016, the notional principal amount of the Group’s outstanding forward
foreign currency contracts was HK$266,291,000 (2015: HK$697,815,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the derivative financial assets at the balance
sheet date is the book carrying value of the derivative assets. Refer to Note 3.4 for
further information.

MR20165F3 8318 » AEE 7 KB HxRE
INE S 4 2 B FE AN BEA266,291,00078 7T

(20154 : 697,815,000 7T) ©

REER  TEEREECRAGEM
BRUTEBEZREAE - ARE—FE

K 234 -

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 16 B RBITE
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FABT
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSFHEIER 570,855 843,817
Short-term bank deposits RAERITER 881,628 1,181,602
1,452,483 2,025,419

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the book carrying
value of the cash and bank balances.

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

REER  FERARZEARBRARSE

MERTTHESR 2 BRTEIE ©

BE RIRITREBIZATERIIE ¢

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
uss$ e 553,774 780,031
HKS BT 463,520 511,902
RMB AR 403,198 731,179
VND WEE 31,417 1,704
Others Hb 574 603
1,452,483 2,025,419
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16

17

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Cont'd)

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are primarily deposited
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC are subject to rules
and regulations on foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates
ranging from 0.5% to 2.1% per annum at 31 March 2016 (2015: 0.70% to 4.10% per
annum).

The effective annual interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits at 31
March 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HRBRENE (B)

16 RERMITHEER ()
AEBUAREINEZRE RRITHEER
DEBHERNFBEZEIT - BZEAR
BIE AR RBINE LR ERES
B 352 51 78 38 <7 PP B BT AR A 2 SIMEE
BAIRIE -

RITRSBBRITEATERARLE BB
BF B - 2016F3A31H B RN T HF
05%Z2.1% (20155 : BEF0.70%ZE4.10%) °

R2016%F & 2015F3 8318 » EHEIRIT1F
REBRFEFNEEFBHANT :

2016 2015
20164 20154
Effective annual interest rate BEREFE 1.2% 2.02%
Maturities L] =! 5-308 days 1-295 days
5-308 K% 1-295K

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 17 BARBRARE

(a) Share capital

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ERTRBREEER

At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 MR2014F4 818 ~ 201538318 &

2016%F3 A31H

(a) BR&
Number
of share Share capital
(thousands) HK$’000
RS EE IR
(F=h) FHET
1,446,423 1,446

(b) Share premium
In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(b) BREDIEE
RIEFEHERAEAENE » Iini
BAHES KT ARBRR - EARRE]
REBEZZRERSERR - BAHRE
HEERRERH R HNEE -
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17 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Cont'd)

112

(c) Share option scheme

The Group's share option scheme was approved and adopted by of the Company
by means of a shareholders’ written resolution on 27 April 2007.

On 11 October 2013, the Board of Directors approved granting options to eligible
employees to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$9.98 per share with vesting period of 3 years. These share
options are exercisable at any time during the period from 11 October 2016 to
10 October 2023.

The fair value of the options granted on 11 October 2013, determined using
the binomial model, was HK$18,529,000 at the grant date. The significant inputs
to the model were share price of HK$9.98 at the grant date, exercise price of
HK$9.98, volatility of 45%, expected annual dividend yield of 9%, an expected
option life of 10 years, and an annual risk free interest rate of 2.09%. The volatility
measured at the grant date was referenced to the historical volatility of the
Company.

Movements in share options are as follows:

FRMBRENE (B)

17 BRERRAHEE (F)
(c) BBmRAERT &

7N 52 B B R A 5T 81 2 200784 A 27
RBBERREMABRRZ N AEAR
BIHEAE R ER A

M2013510A1TE - EERMERE
EREEBREBRE  UEESKRT
{5 (& & % 9.9878 L3R BE & $£10,000,000
ARG  BEBPAE=ZF - %%
BB A% #E A] 722016510 A 11 B 20234
108108 HAR R B R 71 o

2 R20135F 108118 &% I & B8 A% #E
R B EA Rt 8 518,529,000
T DAZHEABEETERAET
ZEEREATEERERE B
BB A FRR0.98E T 1TEEBAEK
9.9878 7T ~ K @ A45% - TEHIF B IR
BORE A% - TBHERERR A10
F o EFEERRFEEB209%HE o
RIEHBEZ EESMUTI2ERRTZ
BERHUEMAE - REREBEHZK
FEHRERRAR ZBEREEMT

g o
R #HT

Number of share options

BREZE
2016 2015
20164 20154
At 1 April R4A18 9,900,000 10,000,000
Forfeited S8 U - (100,000)
At 31 March R3A318 9,900,000 9,900,000

The above outstanding share options have the following expiry date and
exercise price:

Exercise price

Expiry date per share HK$
BRITEE

EHH BT
10 October 2023 2023510A10H 9.98

MM ARITEERE BB RITE
(ER U

Number of share options

BREHE
2016 2015
20165 20154
9,900,000 9,900,000
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18 RESERVES 18 f#H
Foreign
Capital Statutory currency  Share-based  Available-for-
reserve reserves  translation compensation  salefinancial  Retained
(Note (i) (Note (i) reserve reserve  assetsreserve  earnings Total
EXGE  RERE  MBAR NROAER e
(W) (BirkG) W <MERE SREERE REET @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TARL TARL TARL TER ThRL
At 1 April 2014 ®2014F4A1R 1,000 55,805 459,958 1834 18 1,961,764 2480379
Profit attributable to equity holders of ARAEEREA
the Company JE{E 5 = = = - - 1074785 1074785
Currency translation differences GBI E 25 = = (2,542) = = = (2,542)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AR ECREAE
financial assets (Note 11) D@ () = = = = 29 = 29
Release of reserve upon disposal of LESERRERRREZ
interests in joint ventures i - - 430 - - - 430
Total comprehensive income PERALE - 1,780 - 29 1074785 107659
Transaction with owners; BEEARS
Share-based compensation expense MARRID BER 2 e T
(Note 25) (FitsE2s) - - - 3834 - 18 3,852
Transfer to statutory reserve BEZETRS - 127,048 = - - (127049) -
2013/2014 final dividends 20132014E REHRE = = = = - (940175 (940,175)
2014/2015 interim dividends 2014/20155 P RS = = = = - (78569 (578569)
Total transaction with owners R AR 588 - 127,048 - 3,834 ~ (1645774)  (1514,892)
At 31 March 2015 R2015€3A318 1,000 182,853 461,738 5,668 47 1390775 2,042,081
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18 RESERVES (Cont'd) 18 f#fE (#&)

Foreign

Capital  Statutory currency  Share-based  Available-for-

reserve reserves translation compensation  sale financial Retained
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) reserve reserve  assets reserve earnings Total
EXGE  tERE MBER DROAER e
(W) (RREG) E  <HERE SREERE REEN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERL ThRL TER TER TER TERL THRL

At 1 April 2015 ®20155441A 1,000 182,853 461,738 5,668 47 1,390,775 2,042,081

Profit attributable to equity holders of AR TEHBA

the Company ity - - - - - 1125530 1,125,530
Currency translation differences NEBmEEE - - (108,920) - - - (108,920)
Release of available-for-sale financial assets i ERFAERR AT

reserves upon disposal WECHEERE - - - - (47) = (47)
Total comprehensive income PEMABE - - (108,920) - (47)  1,125530 1,016,563
Transaction with owners: BEEARS

Share-based compensation expense PR RETE 2 e

(Note 29) g8 - - - 3,959 - - 3,959

Transfer to statutory reserve BRZEREH - 137,558 - - - (137,558) =

2014/2015 final dividends 201420155 RERE = = = = - (578569)  (578,569)

2015/2016 interim dividends 2015/2016 5 EfR & - - - - - (578569)  (578,569)
Total transaction with owners BRAARSEE - 137,558 - 3,959 - (1,294,696) (1,153,179)
At 31 March 2016 R2016E3A31H 1,000 320,411 352,818 9,627 - 1,221,609 1,905,465
Representing: RN

Proposed final dividend (Note 29) BEEAMRE (ME9) 578,569

Others ity 643,040

1,221,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

18 RESERVES (Cont'd)
Notes:

U]

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves represent legal reserve of a subsidiary incorporated in Macau and
statutory reserves of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary incorporated in
Macau is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its after-tax profit to legal reserve
until the balance of this reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of its capital. The
amount of legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50% of its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC is required to make appropriations to certain
statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years before any profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to be
appropriated to different statutory reserves are determined according to the relevant
regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the subsidiary. Such
statutory reserves can only be used to offset accumulated losses, to increase capital,
or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees.
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These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the subsidiary. ZEEERBTEDRTZMB LR 2
E=BAA -
19 BORROWINGS 19 &8
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Non-current: IERE
Loan from a non-controlling interest of a — 1P /& & Bl FE P 1 f 2
subsidiary (Note (i)) REER (FEE0) 144,409 144,409
Current: wE
Short-term bank loans (Note (ii)) FEERRITE R (BT EEG) 686,473 987,911
Notes: B EE -

(i)

The loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is denominated in USS,
unsecured, non-interest bearing, and without pre-determined repayment terms. The
loan is regarded and accounted for as quasi equity contribution to the subsidiary.

The bank loans bear interest at floating rates. The fair value of the bank loans
approximates their carrying amounts.

(0]

BARHEBZERER AT 2015/2016 F3R

—FEIPT 8 2 B SRS i M A 2 e g B A

ELIE - REER . 2F BRI ER

?ﬁﬁ&mﬁ‘]@m B0 LB FRIRAR B M
R EBREARE L AL ARR ©

) SRITEFIRZEF KRGS - RITERZ
ARENFREREE
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BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
At 31 March 2016, the Group’s bank loans were repayable as follows:

Within 1 year —F R

FRMBRENE (B)

19 &8 (&)
R2016F3A31H » ZEBEEE ZRTT
EFWT

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
686,473 987,911

The exposure of the Group's bank borrowings to interest rate changes at 31 March
2016 is disclosed in Note 3.1(a).

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

AEER201653 43180 2 RITEEFI=
EHEBBENHTE3I@) °

AR IT I B 2 SR (R T S 3t
B :

2016 2015

20165 20154

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

uss$ EViH 611,640 787,911
HKS BT 74,833 200,000
686,473 987,911

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had given guarantees to various banks to
support general banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries amounting to
HK$3,626,319,000 (2015: HK$3,626,319,000). As at 31 March 2016, the utilised amount
of such facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees was HK$125,166,667 (2015:
HK$200,000,000).
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 RIEFAEH
Deferred tax liabilities are as follows: REHIBHELOT ¢
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Deferred income tax liabilities to BB 2ME BB 2 IRIE
be settled after more than 12 months it aE 28,955 12,178
The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows: RIEFTISTHIER FEE T ¢
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April ®481H 12,178 58,267
Currency translation differences SN BT 2R (274) (52)
Charged to the consolidated income statement (Note 27) R4rA USR8 (BIsE27) 17,051 11,131
Transfer to current tax liabilities ERERHIEAE - (57,168)
At 31 March R3A31H 28,955 12,178
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into RIEMSHEERBEZS CRETRE—
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: M AVEREEE 2 &8) T -
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTSTREE -
Provisions
for doubtful
debts and
staff benefits Total
RIREES T
BRIRE st
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
At 1 April 2014 A2014F481H 5,440 5,440
Credited to the consolidated income statement RERBWEREFTA (522) (522)
At 31 March 2015 7M2015%F3H31H 4918 4918
Charged to the consolidated income statement RER B Uz R IR (408) (408)
At 31 March 2016 A2016F3H31H 4,510 4,510
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
Deferred income tax liabilities:

118

At 1 April 2014

Currency translation differences

Charged to the consolidated income
statement

Transfer to current tax liabilities upon
intention to distribute dividends by
subsidiaries

M2014F481H

SN

NGNS

FHBARAED K
REENiSE b

EIHRIA R E

FRMBRENE (B)

20 EEFTEH (F)
BEEFEHRAE

Accelerated

Undistributed

At 31 March 2015

Currency translation differences

Charged to the consolidated income
statement

HM2015%3H31H

SN E R

N GR=R G Eitlis

At 31 March 2016

20163 H31H

tax profits of a
depreciation  subsidiary and
allowance an associate Total
it 18 A =] B
bR B E B R
wERE R BT et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTHERT FTHET
9,050 54,657 63,707
- (52) (52)
469 10,140 10,609
= (57,168) (57,168)
9,519 7,577 17,096
- (274) (274)
(509) 17,152 16,643
9,010 24,455 33,465

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$8,659,250
(2015: HKS$1,825,500) in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$34,637,000 (2015:
HK$7,302,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable income. At 31 March
2016, tax losses amounting to HK$496,000, HK$760,000, HKS$ 1,787,000, HK$4,259,000
and HK$27,335,000 will expire in 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively.
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21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HRBRENE (B)

21 ENRRRRER

BBEn

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Trade payables FETBR R 760,249 700,745
Bills payables ENEE 23,104 46,187
783,353 746,932

The book carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximate their fair values.

Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. Trade and
bills payables were aged as follows:

t 3

BNERERRZEAERLRAER

ETRTZEEH KRN FI0E0K -
ENRARZRZRRNT

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
0 - 60 days 0-60K 611,083 442,386
61 - 120 days 61 - 120K 151,588 302,659
121 days - 1 year 121K - 145 20,682 1,887
783,353 746,932

Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies: FENERERREE T EEEE :
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
uss$ ETT 669,069 599,132
HKS BT 69,988 68,936
RMB AR 27,658 53,466
VND jadEaE 8,506 15,174
Others Hih 8,132 10,224
783,353 746,932
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22 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 FEFTEB REMENSTIE
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Accrual for operating expenses SiEMA 7 ETER 107,884 65,360
Payables for purchase of property, plant BEME  BEIREZ
and equipment &<t 008 19,504 35,490
Provision for employee benefits expense EERF LREE
(including bonus) (BIEIELD) 108,221 101,176
Provision for customer claims and goods return EERE IR R 68,459 1,724
Receipts in advance FEUW R IA 1,627 2,107
Others Hh 54,643 99,981
360,338 305,838
Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following currencies: FEAHIR B K E A B SR A T 5 & ¥ 5
& :
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
HKS BT 203,861 146,598
RMB AR 135,724 146,337
uss e 16,384 12,770
Others EHith 4,369 133
360,338 305,838
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23 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 23 Hitg ARE M (BR) - 38
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Other income: Hup A -
Sale of residual materials HE Rkt 37,968 37,581
Sub-contracting income S A 12,721 17,456
Handling income BRI A 5,237 6,462
Rental income HeWA 4,557 4,706
Government grants R FF L 3,939 4214
Customer compensation on order cancellation BBz B2 B FEE 25,848 13,304
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEWME  BMENLKREZ
and equipment (E518) /W (20,357) 3,124
Sundry income FIFUA 21,622 13,060
91,535 99,907
Other (losses)/gains — net: Hih (F518), /WS — 858

Derivative financial instruments — TTESE TR — RESINES Y
forward foreign exchange contracts (11,870) 15,529
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) SNEW R (B18) FE 1,023 (6,361)
(10,847) 9,168
80,688 109,075
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

24 EMEMD X

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - R NMREITE 153,202 150,150
Amortisation of land use rights 4 3 {5 PR AR 5 1,328 1,286
Cost of raw materials and consumables used FARMAEEFEMEE KA 4,959,149 5,152,507
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories HEH N PRE TF B R 8,092 6,171
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of trade FEWREBRZORME (B) /Bl — B8
receivables-net (5,293) 4,328
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ EERAFEX (BRESHE)
emoluments) (Note 25) (M$7E25) 625,056 506,940
Operating lease payments in respect of land T3 M AR AL A TR A FRIE
and buildings 1,517 1,436
Auditor's remuneration 1% A % M
— Audit services — RS 2,382 1,854
- Non-audit services — B RT 280 400
Claims paid/payable Bt ENRE 31,865 1,567
Others HAth 71,331 78,482
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses  $HEKAR « DI R IHER T EEEHE
and general and administrative expenses — MR RITHRFRZ 5,848,909 5,905,121
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
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25 EERAFAX (BEESHE)

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHT

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances IE& - #H4a - A k28 545,798 450,720
Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes RIKEF — FREHERETE

(Note (a)) (Bt3E@)) 30,945 19,865

Welfare and benefits &M R Az 44,354 32,503

Share-based compensation expense AR n A ERE 2 BES 3,959 3,852

625,056 506,940

(a) Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes

The Company's subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC. The
Group contributes to the scheme at 14% of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s
employees, subject to a cap, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.
The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group's and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiary in Vietnam contributes to state-sponsored employees’
social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes to
the scheme at 18% of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s employees, subject to
a cap. The state-sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

(a) BB — EEMRETE

ARBRHEZ B AR AT EBA
P AT B R B 1R IRE FIET 81 2 A
8  AEBRMBARIEEELRFH
Z14%m st EE R ER (TEBX —
ER) - MBREFERIN - WERERS
MRS MR BEN 2 E—FRIE -
BxREEZERARAEHARARKEES
XEMBERKE °

AEBEEZHEBBES 2B HIME
NEEZAE ([REEEE]) - %&T
B AHBIU AR 2 ERHERET
g - REBEBRESFE - AEERERE
BRufE B RiIER ZEE K
AZ5%F AT EIEHHER - A&
B R EHRBEUE 15008 T AL
R EREHZHFEARLEE -

ARABRBE B AR AR MR E
BRBEZKETZRBHE SRR EIE
HER - REBRMEAREEER
Fraz18% (ER) AT EIEHHK
BxRiETZHERETE AR /R
BEREMBEARS
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 25 EEREAEX (BREEEMS) (8)
(Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEREFALT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for HZE2016F3A3IHIEFE - A5 E
the year ended 31 March 2016 include 3 directors (2015: 3 directors), whose 5B mmB AT RIEIRES (2015
emoluments are disclosed in Note 35. The aggregate emoluments payable to F:38EF)  BEZHMESRMIFESS
the remaining 2 individuals (2015: 2 individual) are as follows: B o EERT 28 AL (20156 : 2

) zHe@mmT

2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Salaries and allowances e RERM 4,447 3,972
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 1,330 1,335
Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes R{K@EH| — ERBHL G2 18 18
Share-based compensation expense VARG A7 73 B HE 2 B 2 B <2 = 389
5,795 5,714

The number of non-directors with emoluments fell within the following bands: FEEATZMESETHEREREZ A

B

2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%8 7T — 2,500,0007 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 - HKS$3,500,000 3,000,001%8 7T — 3,500,0007 7T 1 1
2 2
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26 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 26 WA R ELA
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Finance income: R A NE
- Bank interest income — SRITHBUA 22,481 17,949
- Net foreign exchange gain — SN N R FE 63 1,583
22,544 19,532
Finance costs: TSR -
- Interest expense on bank loans — RITERFEHAZ (13,633) (6,581)
- Net foreign exchange loss — SNEESIRIFE (4,567) (379)
(18,200) (6,960)
Net finance income AR E 4,344 12,572
27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27 FIEHRX
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group was subject to Hong Kong profits RE ZE2016F3A831BLFE A&
tax and PRC enterprise income tax. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at AEMBABRNGEHERECEMSGEH -
the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC B EFFE TR F R FHERF R Fli%
enterprise income tax has been provided for at the rate of 25% (2015: 25%) on the 16.5% (20154 : 16.5%) Z Bt &= {F B £
estimated assessable profits for the year. o REMEMBR M FE AT ER
i 4 Rl #225% (20154 = 25%) 2 Bt & AE
B o
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents: R WEREZ IR 2 FEH &
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Current income tax BVEAFR1S AR
- Hong Kong profits tax — EBFER 75,971 72,575
— PRC corporate income tax — R B ZERTISH 75,783 66,331
Deferred tax (Note 20) RIERIE (FsE20) 17,051 11,131
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE 3,389 i
172,194 150,037
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27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 27 FREHAX (&)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount BANE H Bk BT 1S 8B B 2 B 18 142 5
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the BREEER&RMN 2 IETFAREAE
consolidated entities as follows: ZIERESEIEENT ¢
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Profit before income tax FT 1S54 Ail i A1) 1,294,889 1,219,703
Less: B
Associates and joint ventures’ results reported BE NG REERRIZE2RES
net of tax (TEF) (39,981) (33,829)
1,254,908 1,185,874

Tax calculated at weighted average domestic tax rate %38 A /A B RAAE R 2 s

applicable to profits in respective jurisdictions Figh A TR E 2 FiE 149,214 140,181
Income not subject to tax BARBIUA (4,279) (5/421)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR R 2 4,485 2,529
Over-provision in prior years BEFEEBREEE 3,389 _
Tax losses not recognised RIERMFLIEE B 6,834 2,608
Tax on certain undistributed retained profit of MEARE TADIKIFRE

subsidiaries A2 T IE 12,551 10,140

172,194 150,037

Weighted average domestic applicable tax rate, after (TN IEEE T W RS2
excluding companies exempted from income tax AR IEEF M T A R 11.5% 11.8%
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28 EARNINGS PER SHARE 28 BREF
(a) Basic (a) B
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ERERBFIZARGERIEE AR
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in 16 TR 6 R B BT () hn g T 19 2K
issue during the year. FTE .
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AN 2 BI4E 25 5B A FEAG % 7l 1,125,530 1,074,785
Weighted average number of shares in issue BEITIR (D hE 8
(thousands) (Fr%) 1,446,423 1,446,423
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) BRERZN (BT 0.78 0.74
(b) Diluted (b) 8
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average GREERR S AEETEIING R
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive f&2 BB RE IR B EE
potential ordinary shares. Shares issuable under the share option schemes BELRRETE - BEERES
(Note 17) are the only dilutive potential ordinary shares. A calculation is made in (BF5E17) A T 21T 2 ARt AR ME —ERK
order to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair BUEUE 2 BB - ST E IR
value (determined as the average market price of the Company’s shares during BEFT AR M RITEBRIE - RERECE
the year) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to BEEEDLD  NEERALE (REF
the outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is AARRNRIRG 2 FHETEEE) IKE
compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming ZRDEE o A B TEE 2’ D
the exercise of the share options. HE SRR BREEITEMETZ

Refn 8k B AR -

2016 2015

2016%F 20154

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AN 2 Bl#E 2515 B A JE1 %5 7l 1,125,530 1,074,785

Weighted average number of shares in issue BB TR I 19 8L

(thousands) (Fh%) 1,446,423 1,446,423

Adjustment for share options (thousands) REIRIERE (1) 961 693
Weighted average number of shares for ARG E e EsE R 2 IR 7 hnf

diluted earnings per share (thousands) FHE (FR’) 1,447,384 1,447,116

Diluted earnings per share (HK$ per share) BREERF (BRET) 0.78 0.74
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29 DIVIDENDS 29 RE
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Interim dividend paid of HK40 cents EIRAHA 400l 2 B B
(2015: HK40 cents) (Note (i) (20154 : B#EE4010) (BHEEG)) 578,569 578,569
Proposed final dividend of HK40 cents RS #4011l 2 R HARR B
(2015: HK40 cents) (Note (ii)) (2015% : FBEE400L) (B EG) 578,569 578,569
1,157,138 1,157,138
Notes: BEE -

128

(i)

On 26 November 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors declared an interim
dividend of HK40 cents per share (2015: HK40 cents) for the six-month period ended
30 September 2015. The amount was paid in January 2016.

On 23 June 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of HK40
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2016. This proposed dividend has not
been reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
March 2016.
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

30 REREREBRME
(a) BEEEZRE

2016 2015
20164 20155
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit before income tax FriS % Al s ) 1,294,889 1,219,703
Adjustments for: ATEIBZ A :
Share of profits of associates SaK [y - l/NCT i (36,311) (34,213)
Gain on disposal of certain interest in HEBRENRET
an associate e 2 W (54,941) =
Reversal of provision for impairment of R—EBE AR 2 R ERE
interests in an associate # o (39,900) (33,200)
Share of losses of joint ventures DMEEEREZEBE = 384
Gain on disposal of interests in joint ventures HEE &N R EmPTE W - (29,265)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BELREITE 153,202 150,150
Amortisation of leasehold land and land HELM R i
use rights i AR 4R 1,328 1,286
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BER
and equipment B R () 20,357 (3,124)
Share-based compensation expense L H AERZBES 3,959 3,852
Finance income RSN (22,544) (19,532)
Finance costs U 18,200 6,960
Operating profit before working capital changes 2B & & E B R 2 &£ 20T 1,338,239 1,263,001
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (gm), wd (50,563) 165,200
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables — FEUWBRF MR Z4& (3Ehn), @ (135,029) 44,732
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments & ~ B EIE R M E
and other receivables FIER A (3 hn) 18,494 (45,749)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due JEURE: & N B FIR (), R
from associates (2,935) 28,146
Change in derivative financial instruments TESMTEES) 3,994 (22,023)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables FEATBR R Z=HRE N, CRi ) 36,421 (92,535)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and FEETIE B K& E b fE I8
other payables &, Cr) 55,908 (90,121)
Decrease in amount due to an associate FEH & R R RIRR L (2,095) (1,456)
Cash generated from operations SEEEZRE 1,262,434 1,249,195
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals of

FRMBRENE (B)

30 RERERERME (H)
(b) REFEREREBRA - HEWE - K

property, plant and equipment comprise: ERRERBRERRE

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Net book amount BRmEFE 24,093 4,327
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE LRE

and equipment 2 (E18) Wk (20,357) 3,124
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME  BEKEE

and equipment FT{S I8 3,736 7,451

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 REEE

At 31 March 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

R2016F3H831H » REBIWEERNNAE
BfE (20154 : #) -

32 COMMITMENTS 32 EAREEE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred REEHETNENARBEZELRRH
is as follows: XA
2016 2015
20165 20154
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Contracted but not provided for: EEFEESE
Property, plant and equipment YE -~ B R 136,443 199,142
Leasehold land and land use rights HE b T fF R 12,240 33,443
148,683 232,585

At 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any significant share of capital
commitments of its associates (2015: Nil).

At 31 March 2016, the Group had authorised an injection of approximately
HK$247,239,000 (equivalent of US$31,801,000) (2015: HK$246,571,000 (equivalent
of US$31,801,000)) as capital of a subsidiary in Vietnam.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

32 COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of land and buildings, as lessees, as follows:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HRBRENE (B)

32 EAREEE (&)
(b) RRE BN ASE

BBEn

NEE (ERAREAN) RELHRE
FZAAREEEHORRKERE

FIBEFEWT
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
As lessee: ETIZDNE
Not later than 1 year THBBE1F 393 372
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years BRI F RN EB RS 96 489
489 861

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable

operating leases, as lessors, as follows:

AEE (EREHEAN) RIE A HH
REROARKREBSRALBELD

T

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT

As lessor: HAEA
Not later than 1 year THEB1F 2,339 1,381
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years BRI F R Rs T 73 1,474
2,412 2,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common significant influence.

(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

N

33

TR M RENE (8)

BREALRS
i Eff — 7 BRE N B A EH 5 —
T BB R -T2 BREERRITRE
EAXREN AILSEAIRERER
e X H H?ﬂ& {RBXAFEZAL
TR 78 BE

(a) BEFBEATETZRZNOT :

2016 2015
20164 201545
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Sales of goods HEEmM
- A related party (Notes (i) and (ii)) — BR8N+ (BsEa) Eii)) 1,546 1,475
- An associate (Note (ii) — BN\ (FREdi) 18,975 25,191
20,521 26,666
Rental income HEWA
- An associate (Note (iii)) —BtEna (i) 4,557 4,706
Sub-contracting income 2ERA
- An associate (Note (ii) — B A (FREdi) 2,652 2,199
Handling income BEWRA
— An associate (Note (iv)) o A —NCIRGTET ()] 5,237 5,922
Notes: B 5E

(i) The related party is a company controlled by Mr. Henry Choi Wing Kong, the son
of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a director of the Company.

(i) Goods are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices mutually
agreed by both parties in the ordinary course of business.

(i

Rental income is based on the size of the property and the relevant market rate.

(iv) Handling fee received from an associate is charged at 2% to 3% of the value
of certain purchases made as an agent of the associate, and the rates of the
handling fee were mutually agreed by both parties. These transactions are not

included as the Group’s sales and costs of sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b) Year-end balances arising from an associate

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HRBRENE (B)

33 BEEALRS ()

BBEn

(b) —RBENBREEZFELER

2016 2015
2016%F 20154
HK$'000 HKS'000
FExT FAT
Amount due from an associate for sub-contracting  FEURERE R F] 9 B A K
income and rental income HE WA 410 461
Amount due from an associate arising from AR BEE S MEL 2 EIE:Z
purchase of goods on behalf UNGIE/QE] 42,779 39,793
Amount due to an associate for rental deposit EREE AR BRAES
received b (2,479) (4,574)
(c) Key management compensation (c) TEEEAEMS
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Salaries, bonus and allowances AP (AW VY= 3: 30,073 40,929
Retirement benefits — defined contribution schemes E/REH| — & Bt FRET 2 17 67
30,090 40,996
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT ()

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 34 APFEEEBERRFBREZEH

Balance sheet of the Company KATREEEER
2016 2015
20164 20154
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B AR Z RS 2,121,498 2,238,634
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EENGIE ] 2,437,128 2,386,738
Cash and bank balances R4 MIRTTHEER 1,992 132,924
2,439,120 2,519,662
Total assets EEH#E 4,560,618 4,758,296
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 1,446 1,446
Share premium R mE 1,453,188 1,453,188
Reserves & 932,232 848,052
2,386,866 2,302,686
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings =Y 611,639 787,911
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R E fh T FIE 6,348 6,061
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG 1,555,765 1,661,638
2,173,752 2,455,610
Total liabilities =Rt 2,173,752 2,455,610
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEAE 4,560,618 4,758,296
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBHERNT (8)

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Reserve movement of the Company

34 AAREERERRAEBZED (H)
FARREZED

Share-based

compensation Retained
reserve Earnings Total
LR R ER
2 < fEE REBEF #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FET
At 1 April 2014 A2014F4818 1,834 1,025,118 1,026,952
Profit for the year FE s A - 1,335,992 1,335,992
Share-based compensation expense LARE (7 A 2 B & RS2 3,834 18 3,852
2013/2014 final dividends 2013,/ 2014F KEARR B = (940,175) (940,175)
2014/2015 interim dividends 2014,/ 2015F FF HARR B - (578,569) (578,569)
At 31 March 2015 7201538311 5,668 842,384 848,052
At 1 April 2015 74201554818 5,668 842,384 848,052
Profit for the year F 25 ) - 1,237,359 1,237,359
Share-based compensation expense VARG (7 B E T 2 Bl & F 2 3,959 - 3,959
2014/2015 final dividends 2014,/ 2015 F R EAAR B, = (578,569) (578,569)
2015/2016 interim dividends 2015,/ 20164 R HAAR B, - (578,569) (578,569)
At 31 March 2016 A2016F3H31H 9,627 922,605 932,232
Representing: KR
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) EEARERE (MFE29) 578,569
Others Hith 344,036
922,605
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35 EERTHARZHE
AEEEN EBREARAEE MR

35 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Company

by the Group are as follows:

EQT :

2016 2015

20164 20154

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHT

Fees wE 3,380 4,130
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances IE& - #Ha e k28 26,693 33,418
Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes RIKEF — EREHEREE 17 49
Welfare and benefits B R = =
Share-based compensation expense AR D R B R 2 B & 2 - =
30,090 37,597

The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:

HE2016F3A31HIEFE  SEF 2

oy (N
Retirement
Wages, benefit -

salaries, defined Share-based

bonusand  contribution Welfareand  compensation
Name of Directors Fees allowances schemes benefits expense Total

I -%¢- RINER - URGBAER 2
Espg we | PARRE  EHEMAEE BRRAE Hem% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Ip Ping Im Emu = = - - - -
Choi Kin Chung pig=dan - - = = = =
Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 13,320 - - = 14,820
Tsang Kang Po BER 1,000 11,496 12 = = 12,508
Lam Wing Tak Mz 250 1,877 5 = = 2,132
Lau Yiu Tong 2Rz Lt . - _ _ _
Chan Yue kwong, Michael Rk 210 - - - = 210
Ng Ching Wah hEE 210 - - - - 210
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel RIS 210 - - - - 210
Total @it 3,380 26,693 17 - - 30,090
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) Fe BB RN ()
35 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 35 EERTHARZME (&)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: HE2015F3A3IBILEFE  FEEFEZM
LW :
Retirement
Wages, benefit -
salaries, defined Share-based
bonusand  contribution Welfareand  compensation
Name of Directors Fees allowances schemes benefits expense Total
15 #é- RIER - URGRER 2
ESpg Hwe BAREY ERERE BRRFE HEem% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER FET TER FET FER TER
Ip Ping Im 37 - - - . g _
Choi Kin Chung iz - - _ _ _ _
Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 13,044 13 - - 14,557
Tsang Kang Po RN 1,000 11,339 18 = = 12,357
Lam Wing Tak MERE 1,000 9,035 18 = = 10,053
Lau Yiu Tong 2ligx = =
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael B 210 - - - - 210
Ng Ching Wah fhigs 210 = - = = 210
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel iAEIES 210 = = = = 210
Total it 4,130 33418 49 - - 37,597
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BRHE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 31 March,
HBEIABLEE

saxy

Iy = n\,E\

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20164 20154 20144 20134 201245
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THET FHT FET FET FHT
Revenue WA 6,927,614 6,906,883 7,423,481 6,649,206 6,419,952
Gross profit EF 1,302,504 1,177,906 1,361,371 1,181,534 1,098,780
Profit attributable to: THIALEERR]
Equity holders of RAFERFERA
the Company 1,125,530 1,074,785 1,116,802 925,165 893,053
Non-controlling interests FEFE ) MR S (2,835) (5,119) (2,411) (852) 982
1,122,695 1,069,666 1,114,391 924313 894,035
& A =
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GEEERER
As at 31 March,
M3A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20165 20154F 20144 20134 20124
HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET FHT THT FHET FET
Non-current assets ERFBEE 1,886,598 1,760,187 1,471,289 1,372,858 1,489,768
Current assets MBEE 3,544,846 3,966,978 3,882,065 3,903,785 3,872,268
Total assets AEBE 5,431,444 5,727,165 5,353,354 5,276,643 5,362,036
Current liabilities TEHAE 1,906,148 2,076,169 1,308,765 1,210,781 1,319,245
Total assets less current liabilities EEMABERTEBE 3,525,296 3,650,996 4,044,589 4,065,862 4,042,791
Non-current liabilities FERFAaE 173,364 156,587 105,776 93,583 80,814
Total equity L e 3,351,932 3,494,409 3,938,813 3,972,279 3,961,977
Net current assets mENEEFE 1,638,698 1,890,809 2,573,300 2,693,004 2,553,023
Equity attributable to: TH AT FE(ERERS ¢
Equity holders of the Company RATREZEEA A 3,360,099 3,496,715 3,935,013 3,965,845 3,954,691
Non-controlling interests FEPE G RS (8,167) (2,306) 3,800 6,434 7,286
3,351,932 3,494,409 3,938,813 3,972,279 3,961,977
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THE BOARD

As at the date of this annual report, the executive Directors are Mr. Wan Wai Loi
(Chairman), Mr. Tsang Kang Po, the non-executive Directors are Mr. Choi Kin Chung, Mr.
Ip Ping Im, Mr. Lau Yiu Tong and Mr. Lam Wing Tak and the independent non-executive
Directors are Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,

Nigel.

In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial
Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following expression shall have

the following meanings:

"2016 Financial Year”

"AGM”

"Articles”

"Board”

"CG Code”

"Company”

"Directors”

"Group”

"INED”

"Listing Rules”

"Model Code”

"PT Sri Lanka”

for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annual general meeting of the Company

the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended
from time to time

The board of Directors of the Company
the Corporate Governance Code
Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted company

incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

the director(s) of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers

Textured Jersey Lanka PLC (formerly known as Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka

£

GLOSSARY
SHAR

RAFHRAH  RTEFRFERELE (X
F) BRRALE: FATESRERTRL
£ BRELE FREEERMREE
£ ARBIIFRTEFARRACEL
BELERIEEREL

RAFIRA (OB BB ¥R & B2 I 7% & BB
5N BRIEXEREEE - THFEAEAEBNUT

&%

[2016F A E |

[RRBFEAE

[Zi24A ]

[E£R/]

[EERTA

[R27]]

[E=%]

[A&E ]

]

(B IFAITER]

[ LAl

[R%E<TA

[PTHTERE K

HE2016F3A31H IEF
&

ARRZBRBFAE

RRA PRI Z R
A ERAR

RRRIZEER
eERERTH

EAHBERERA
B —HRHERS
MKz EHREE
/NI i
R ET™

RARRIZES
ARRREMERT]

AR BRI IEHAT
B=

B PR L AR A

EHBEITAEFTET
EHR HHIRLEST A

Textured Jersey Lanka PLC
(BiIfETextured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited) + —f&4R
G R NS 1199
S 2 BRAR
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GLOSSARY
SHAR

"SEQ
"Shares”

"Share Option
Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong)

Shares issued by the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.001 each

the share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant

to the written resolutions of the Shareholders of the
Company passed on 27 April 2007

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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